

# MR01(ef)

# **Registration of a Charge**

Company Name:WHOLEBAKE LIMITEDCompany Number:03292581

Received for filing in Electronic Format on the: **19/07/2022** 

## **Details of Charge**

- Date of creation: 13/07/2022
- Charge code: 0329 2581 0018
- Persons entitled: SHAWBROOK BANK LIMITED
- Brief description: THE FREEHOLD LAND AND BUILDINGS KNOWN AS TYN LLIDIART INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, CORWEN, LL21 9RR REGISTERED AT HM LAND REGISTRY WITH TITLE NUMBERS WA622816 AND CYM261102

Contains fixed charge(s).

Contains floating charge(s) (floating charge covers all the property or undertaking of the company).

Contains negative pledge.

## Authentication of Form

This form was authorised by: a person with an interest in the registration of the charge.

### Authentication of Instrument

Certification statement: I CERTIFY THAT SAVE FOR MATERIAL REDACTED PURSUANT TO S.859G OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 THE ELECTRONIC COPY INSTRUMENT DELIVERED AS PART OF THIS APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION IS A CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL INSTRUMENT.





XB8LFLI0

Certified by:



# CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 3292581

Charge code: 0329 2581 0018

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 13th July 2022 and created by WHOLEBAKE LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 19th July 2022.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 21st July 2022

The above information was communicated by electronic means and authenticated by the Registrar of Companies under section 1115 of the Companies Act 2006





DATED

13 July

2022

#### (1) SHAWBROOK BANK LIMITED

- and -

#### (2) THE ENTITIES NAMED IN THIS DEED AS CHARGORS

DEBENTURE

#### CONTENTS

1.	DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION	
2.	COVENANT TO PAY	
3.	GRANT OF SECURITY	
4.	FIXED SECURITY	
5.	FLOATING CHARGE	
6.	CONVERSION OF FLOATING CHARGE	
7.	CONTINUING SECURITY	
8.	LIABILITY OF CHARGORS RELATING TO SECURITY ASSETS	
9.	ACCOUNTS	
10.	REPRESENTATIONS	
11.	UNDERTAKINGS BY EACH CHARGOR	
12.	POWER TO REMEDY	
13.	WHEN SECURITY BECOMES ENFORCEABLE	
14.	ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY	
15.	RECEIVER	
16.	POWERS OF RECEIVER	
17.	APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS	
18.	SET-OFF	
19.	DELEGATION	
20.	FURTHER ASSURANCES	
$\frac{20}{21}$ .	POWER OF ATTORNEY	
$\frac{1}{22}$ .	PAYMENTS	
${23}$ .	STAMP DUTY	
24.	COSTS AND EXPENSES	
$\frac{21}{25}$ .	CURRENCIES	
26.	INDEMNITY	
27.	MISCELLANEOUS	
$\frac{1}{28}$ .	PROTECTIVE CLAUSES	
29.	THIRD PARTY CLAUSES	
30.	NOTICES	
31.	PARTIAL INVALIDITY	
32.	RELEASE	
33.	COUNTERPARTS	
34.	GOVERNING LAW	
0	HEDULE 1	
JUI	Part 1 - Chargors	
SCI	HEDULE 2	
JUI	Details of Security Assets	
	Part 1 - Specified Real Property	
	Part 2 - Specified P&M	
	Part 3 - Intellectual Property	
	Part 4 - Insurances	
	Part 5 - Security Accounts	
	Part 6 - Relevant Contracts	
SCI	HEDULE 3	
	Facility Specific Provisions	
	Part 1 - Additional Definitions	
	Part 2 - Additional Undertakings	
	Part 3 - Additional Representations	
	Part 4 - Additional Fixed Security	
	Part 5 - Loans against Receivables	

SCHEDULE 4	.42
PART 1 - FORM OF NOTICE TO INSURERS	.42
PART 2 – FORM OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FROM INSURERS	. 44
SCHEDULE 5	.45
PART 1 - FORM OF NOTICE TO INSURERS	.45
PART 2 – FORM OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FROM INSURERS	. 46
SCHEDULE 6	.47
PART 1 - FORM OF NOTICE TO INSURERS	.47
PART 2 – FORM OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FROM INSURERS	. 49

#### THIS DEBENTURE is made on

13 July 2022

#### BETWEEN

- (1) SHAWBROOK BANK LIMITED a company incorporated and registered under the laws of England and Wales with limited liability and registered with the number 00388466 with its registered office at Lutea House, The Drive, Warley Hill Business Park, Great Warley, Brentwood, Essex, CM13 3BE ("Shawbrook"); and
- (2) THE ENTITIES LISTED IN PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 1 TO THIS DEED (each a "Chargor" and together the "Chargors").

**IT IS AGREED** as follows:

#### 1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

#### 1.1 **Definitions**

In this Deed:

- (a) the definitions set out in part 1 of schedule 3 (*Facility Specific Provisions*) (if any) shall be incorporated into this clause 1.1 as though they were set out in full in this clause 1.1; and
- (b) the following terms have the following meanings:

"Act" means the Law of Property Act 1925;

"Administrator" means any person appointed under schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 to manage any Chargor's affairs, business and property;

"Assigned Assets" means the Security Assets expressed to be assigned pursuant to clause 4.3 (*Security assignments*) or schedule 3 (*Facility Specific Provisions*);

"Charged Investments" means the Securities and all present and future Securities Rights accruing to all or any of the Securities;

"**Default**" means an Enforcement Event or any event or circumstance specified in clause 13 (*When Security becomes enforceable*) which would with the expiry of a grace period, the giving of notice, the making of any determination or any combination of the foregoing be an Enforcement Event;

"Default Interest Rate" means the rate of interest payable in accordance with the terms of any Relevant Funding Agreement in relation to any amount which is not paid on the due date for payment or if none, or if Shawbrook is unable to determine which rate otherwise applies at the relevant time, the rate which is 4% (four per cent) above the Bank of England's published base rate from time to time;

"Enforcement Event" means each of the events listed in clause 13 (*When Security becomes enforceable*);

"Environmental Claim" means any claim, proceeding, formal notice or investigation by any person in respect of any Environmental Law;

"Environment" means humans, animals, plants and all other living organisms including the ecological systems of which they form part and the following media:

- (a) air (including, without limitation, air within natural or man-made structures, whether above or below ground);
- (b) water (including, without limitation, territorial, coastal and inland waters, water under or within land and water in drains and sewers); and
- (c) land (including, without limitation, land under water);

"Environmental Law" means any applicable law or regulation which relates to:

- (a) the pollution or protection of the Environment;
- (b) the conditions of the workplace; or
- (c) the generation, handling, storage, use, release or spillage of any substance which, alone or in combination with any other, is capable of causing harm to the Environment, including, without limitation, any waste;

"Insolvency Proceedings" means, in relation to any person:

- (a) any commercial rent arrears recovery, attachment, injunction, execution, sequestration, diligence or other legal process is levied, enforced or sued on or against all or any part of the assets of that person;
- (b) any petition or proposal is presented or a meeting is convened with a view to a composition, assignment or arrangement with any creditors of that person;
- (c) a meeting of that person (or its directors or members) is convened for the purpose of considering any resolution for (or to petition for) its winding-up or for its administration or any such resolution is passed;
- (d) a notice of intention to appoint an Administrator or notice of appointment of an Administrator is given or filed with the court by any person or an Administrator is appointed;
- (e) an encumbrancer takes possession, or a receiver or manager or administrative receiver is appointed, of the whole or any part of the assets of that person;
- (f) any person presents a petition for the administration or winding-up or bankruptcy of a person;
- (g) an order for the winding-up or administration or bankruptcy of that person is made;
- (h) a moratorium pursuant to section 1A of and schedule A1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 or pursuant to paragraph 1A of schedule 1 to the Insolvent Partnerships Order 1994 is established;

- (j) any petition or proposal is presented, any application is made or a meeting is convened with a view to the rehabilitation, administration, receivership, custodianship, liquidation, winding-up or dissolution of that person (other than for the purpose of an amalgamation or reconstruction whilst solvent), or any other Insolvency Proceedings involving that person;
- (k) a proposal is made for a composition in satisfaction of the person's debts or a scheme of arrangement of its affairs including a voluntary arrangement within either of the meanings given in the Insolvency Act 1986; or
- (1) any analogous steps or proceedings are taken in respect of, by or against such person in any other jurisdiction.

"Insolvent" means, in relation to any person:

- (a) such person is, or is deemed for the purposes of any law to be, unable to pay its debts within the meaning of the Insolvency Act 1986 or to be insolvent, or admits its inability to pay its debts as they fall due;
- (b) such person ceases to trade or notifies the Chargor or Shawbrook of its intention to cease to trade or the Chargor or Shawbrook otherwise becomes aware of such intention through a source reasonably considered to be reliable; or
- (c) any Insolvency Proceedings have occurred or are continuing in relation to such person,

and "Insolvency" shall be construed accordingly.

"**Insurances**" means all policies of insurance (and all cover notes) which are at any time held by, or written in favour of, a Chargor or in which a Chargor from time to time has an interest including, without limitation, the Insurances specified in part 4 of

schedule 2 (Details of Security Assets);

"Intellectual Property" means all present and future Intellectual Property Rights;

"Intellectual Property Rights" means:

- (a) any patents, trademarks, service marks, designs, business names, copyrights, database rights, design rights, domain names, moral rights, inventions, confidential information, know-how and other intellectual property rights and interests (which may now or in the future subsist) whether registered or unregistered; and
- (b) the benefit of all applications and rights to use such assets of each Chargor (which may now or in the future subsist);

"Intercreditor Agreement" means any contract which regulates the respective rights and obligations of financiers to or equity holders in, any of the Chargors and designated by Shawbrook and the relevant Chargor(s) as an "Intercreditor Agreement" for the purposes of this Deed;

"Inventory" means any raw materials, work in progress and unsold finished goods owned by a Chargor, being the stock-in-trade of such Chargor;

"Other Receivables" means, save for any Receivables identified in schedule 3 (*Facility Specific Provisions*), all present and future book debts and other debts, rentals, royalties, fees, VAT and monetary claims and all other amounts at any time recoverable or receivable by, or due or owing to, a Chargor (whether actual or contingent and whether arising under contract or in any other manner whatsoever) together with:

- (a) the benefit of all rights, guarantees, Security Interests and remedies relating to any of the foregoing (including, without limitation, negotiable instruments, indemnities, reservations of property rights, rights of tracing and unpaid vendor's liens and similar associated rights); and
- (b) all proceeds of any of the foregoing;

"**Obligor**" means each Chargor and each other entity listed in part 1 of schedule 1 to this Deed;

"P&M" means all plant, machinery, other capital equipment (excluding Inventory) owned by each Chargor from time to time wherever located and all spare parts, replacements, modifications and additions for or to the same and any manuals, logbooks or registration documents relating thereto;

"**Party**" means a party to this Deed;

"Permitted Security" means any Security Interest or Quasi-Security:

- (a) created or subsisting with the prior written consent of Shawbrook; or
- (b) expressly permitted under a Relevant Funding Agreement; or
- (c) created by this Deed;

"Quasi-Security" means an arrangement or transaction to:

- (a) sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any of its receivables on recourse terms;
- (b) enter into any arrangement under which money or the benefit of a bank or other account may be applied, set-off or made subject to a combination of accounts; or
- (c) enter into any other preferential arrangement having a similar effect;

"**Real Property**" means all estates and interests in freehold, leasehold and other immovable property (wherever situated) now or in future belonging to each Chargor, or in which any Chargor has an interest at any time, together with:

- (a) all buildings and fixtures (including trade fixtures) and fixed P&M at any time thereon;
- (b) all easements, rights and agreements in respect thereof; and
- (c) the benefit of all covenants given in respect thereof;

"Receiver" means any receiver or receiver and manager appointed by Shawbrook under this Deed;

"**Relevant Contract**" means each agreement specified in part 6 of schedule 2 (*Details of Security Assets*) together with each other agreement supplementing or amending or novating or replacing the same and any other agreement designated from time to time by Shawbrook as a "**Relevant Contract**" for the purposes of this Deed;

"**Relevant Funding Agreement**" means any contract(s) or letter(s) setting out the terms of or constituting any of the Secured Obligations, including, for the avoidance of doubt, any Facility Agreement listed (and defined) in schedule 3 (*Facility Specific Provisions*);

"Secured Obligations" means all or any money and liabilities which shall from time to time (and whether on or at any time after demand) be due, owing or incurred in whatsoever manner to Shawbrook by any Obligor, whether actually or contingently, solely or jointly and whether as principal or surety (or guarantor or cautioner), including any money and liabilities of any Obligor to a third party which have been assigned or novated to or otherwise vested in Shawbrook and including interest, discount, commission and other lawful charges or expenses which Shawbrook may in the course of its business charge or incur in respect of any of those matters or for keeping any such Obligor's account, and so that interest shall be computed and compounded according to Shawbrook's usual rates and practice (or as otherwise specified in any Relevant Funding Agreement) after as well as before any demand made or judgment or decree contained under or in relation to this Deed;

"Securities" means all stocks, shares, debentures, bonds, warrants, coupons, negotiable instruments, certificates of deposit or other securities or "investments" (as defined in part II of schedule II to the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 as in force at the date of this Deed) now or in future owned (legally or beneficially) by a Chargor, held by a nominee on its behalf or in which such Chargor has an interest at any time;

#### "Securities Rights" means:

- (a) all dividends, distributions and other income paid or payable on the relevant Securities or on any asset referred to in paragraph (b) of this definition; and
- (b) all rights, monies or property accruing or offered at any time in relation to such Securities whether by way of redemption, substitution, exchange, bonus or preference, under option rights or otherwise;

"Security" means the Security Interests created by or pursuant to this Deed;

#### "Security Account" means:

- (a) each account specified in part 5 of
  - schedule 2 (Details of Security Assets) as a Security Account;
- (c) such specially designated account(s) with Shawbrook as Shawbrook may from time to time direct; or
- (d) such other account(s) with such other bank as Shawbrook may from time to time direct,

together with all additions to or renewals or replacements thereof (in whatever currency);

"Security Assets" means all property and assets from time to time mortgaged, charged or assigned (or expressed to be mortgaged, charged or assigned) by or pursuant to this Deed;

(b)

"Security Interest" means any mortgage, charge (whether fixed or floating), pledge, lien, hypothecation, trust, trust arrangement for the purposes of providing security, assignment, assignment by way of security, tracing or other equitable right, or:

- (a) any other agreement or arrangement having the effect of conferring security (including any such interest arising under or in connection with any letter of credit);
- (b) any other security interest of any kind or preferring any obligation of any person; or
- (c) any other guarantee, indemnity, warranty, agreement or arrangement having the effect of conferring security;

"Security Period" means the period beginning on the date of this Deed and ending on the date on which:

- (a) all the Secured Obligations have been unconditionally and irrevocably paid and discharged in full; and
- (b) Shawbrook has no further commitment, obligation or liability to any Obligor (including to make any finance, credit or other accommodation available to any Obligor);

#### "SPECIFIED P&M" MEANS THE P&M (IF ANY) SPECIFIED IN PART 2 OF

schedule 2 (Details of Security Assets);

#### "SPECIFIED REAL PROPERTY" **MEANS THE REAL PROPERTY SPECIFIED IN PART 1** OF

schedule 2 (*Details of Security Assets*), together with any other Real Property which Shawbrook may designate as "Specified Real Property";

"Spot Rate of Exchange" means the spot rate of exchange for the purchase of the relevant currency with Sterling in the London foreign exchange market at or about 11.00am on a particular day of the bank used by Shawbrook for the relevant transaction or any other rate selected or determined by Shawbrook;

"Subsidiary" means a subsidiary within the meaning of section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006; and

"**Tax**" means any tax, levy, impost, duty or other charge or withholding of a similar nature (including any penalty or interest payable in connection with any failure to pay or any delay in paying any of the same).

#### 1.2 Interpretation

- (a) Unless a contrary indication appears, any reference in this Deed to:
  - (i) an "**Obligor**", a **Chargor**" or "**Shawbrook**" shall be construed so as to include its successors in title, permitted assigns and permitted transferees;
  - (ii) **"this Deed"**, any **"Relevant Funding Agreement"** or any other agreement or instrument shall be construed as a reference to this Deed, such Relevant

Funding Agreement or such other agreement or instrument as varied, amended, supplemented, extended, restated, novated and/or replaced in any manner from time to time (however fundamentally and even if any of the same increases the obligations of a Chargor provides for further advances);

- (iii) **"assets"** includes any present and future properties, revenues and rights of every description and includes uncalled capital;
- (iv) an Enforcement Event that is "continuing" shall be construed as meaning an Enforcement Event that has not been waived in writing by Shawbrook, or remedied to the satisfaction of Shawbrook and any waiver given by Shawbrook shall only apply to the specific occurrence of the specific event referred to in such waiver;
- (v) "including" or "includes" means including or includes without limitation;
- (vi) "Secured Obligations" includes obligations and liabilities which would be treated as such but for the liquidation or dissolution of or similar event affecting an Obligor;
- (vii) a provision of law is a reference to that provision as amended or re-enacted; and
- (viii) the singular includes the plural and vice versa.
- (b) References to clauses, paragraphs and schedules are to be construed, unless otherwise stated, as references to clauses, paragraphs and schedules of and to this Deed and references to this Deed include its schedules.
- (c) Clause and schedule headings are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction of this Deed.
- (d) Each undertaking of a Chargor contained in this Deed must be complied with at all times during the Security Period.
- (e) The terms of any Relevant Funding Agreements or side letters between any of the parties thereto are incorporated in this Deed to the extent required to ensure that any disposition of the property contained in this Deed is a valid disposition in accordance with section 2(1) of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989.
- (f) If Shawbrook reasonably considers that an amount paid by an Obligor to Shawbrook under this Deed or any Relevant Funding Agreement is capable of being avoided or otherwise set aside on the liquidation or administration of such Obligor, then that amount shall not be considered to have been irrevocably paid for the purposes of this Deed.
- (g) The Parties intend that this document shall take effect as a deed notwithstanding the fact that a Party may only execute this document under hand.

#### **1.3** Third party rights

A person who is not a Party shall have no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce or enjoy the benefit of any term of this Deed.

#### 1.4 Joint and several

The liabilities and obligations of each Chargor under this Deed are joint and several. Each Chargor agrees to be bound by this Deed notwithstanding that any other Chargor which was intended to sign or be bound by this Deed did not so sign or is not bound by this Deed

#### 2. COVENANT TO PAY

#### 2.1 Covenant to pay

Each Chargor, as principal obligor and not merely as surety, covenants in favour of Shawbrook that it will pay and discharge the Secured Obligations from time to time when they fall due.

#### 2.2 Default interest

- (a) Any amount which is not paid under this Deed when due shall bear interest (both before and after judgment and payable on demand) from the due date until the date on which such amount is unconditionally and irrevocably paid and discharged in full at the Default Interest Rate from time to time.
- (b) Default interest will accrue from day to day and will be compounded at such intervals as Shawbrook states are appropriate. For the avoidance of doubt, any Default interest due under this Deed and any Relevant Funding Agreement may not be double counted.

#### 3. GRANT OF SECURITY

#### 3.1 Nature of Security

All Security Interests and dispositions created or made by or pursuant to this Deed are created or made:

- (a) in favour of Shawbrook;
- (b) with full title guarantee in accordance with the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994; and
- (c) as continuing security for payment of the Secured Obligations.

#### **3.2 Qualifying floating charge**

Paragraph 14 of schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 applies to any floating charge created by or pursuant to this Deed (and each such floating charge is a qualifying floating charge for the purposes of the Insolvency Act 1986).

#### 4. FIXED SECURITY

#### 4.1 Fixed charges - general

Each Chargor charges and agrees to charge all of its present and future right, title and interest in and to the following assets which are at any time owned by it, or in which it from time to time has an interest:

- (a) by way of first legal mortgage the Specified Real Property;
- (b) by way of first fixed charge:
  - (i) all Real Property and all interests in Real Property not charged by clause 4.1(a));
  - (ii) all licences to enter upon or use land and the benefit of all other agreements relating to land; and
  - (iii) the proceeds of sale of all Real Property other than Specified Real Property;
- (c) by way of first fixed charge all Specified P&M;
- (d) by way of first fixed charge the benefit of all contracts, licences and warranties relating to the Specified P&M;
- (e) by way of first fixed charge all P&M (not charged by clauses 4.1(c) or 4.1(d)) and the benefit of all contracts, licences and warranties relating to the same;
- (f) by way of first fixed charge:
  - (i) all computers, vehicles, office equipment and other equipment (not charged by clause 4.1(c)); and
  - (ii) the benefit of all contracts, licences and warranties relating to the same,

other than any which are for the time being part of such Chargor's Inventory;

- (g) by way of first fixed charge all Securities;
- (h) by way of first fixed charge (A) all Securities Rights from time to time accruing to those Securities and (B) all rights which such Chargor may have at any time against any clearance or settlement system or any custodian in respect of any Securities;
- (i) by way of first fixed charge:
  - (i) any Security Accounts with Shawbrook and all monies at any time standing to the credit of those Security Accounts; and
  - (ii) all accounts of a Chargor with Shawbrook at any time not charged by clause 4.1(i)(i) and all monies at any time standing to the credit of such accounts,

in each case, together with all interest from time to time accrued or accruing on such monies, any investment made out of such monies or account and all rights to repayment of any of the foregoing;

- (j) by way of first fixed charge the Intellectual Property (if any) specified in part 3 of
- (k)

schedule 2 (Details of Security Assets);

- (1) by way of first fixed charge all Intellectual Property (if any) not charged by clause 4.1(j);
- (m) to the extent that any Assigned Asset is not effectively assigned under clause 4.3 (*Security assignments*), by way of first fixed charge, such Assigned Asset;
- (n) by way of first fixed charge (to the extent not otherwise charged or assigned in this Deed):
  - the benefit of all licences, consents, agreements and authorisations held or used in connection with the business of such Chargor or the use of any of its assets; and
  - (ii) any letter of credit issued in favour of such Chargor and all bills of exchange and other negotiable instruments held by it; and
- (o) by way of first fixed charge all of the goodwill and uncalled capital of such Chargor.

#### 4.2 Fixed charges - additional

Part 4 of schedule 3 (Additional Fixed Security) (if applicable to this Deed) contains further fixed charges.

#### 4.3 Security assignments

Each Chargor assigns and agrees to assign absolutely (subject to a proviso for reassignment on redemption) all its present and future right, title and interest in and to:

- (a) the proceeds of the sale of any Specified Real Property;
- (b) the proceeds of the sale of any Specified P&M;
- (c) the proceeds of the sale of any Securities;

# THE PROCEEDS OF THE SALE OF ANY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY SPECIFIED IN PART 3 OF

(d)

schedule 2 (Details of Security Assets);

- (e) the Insurances, all claims under the Insurances and all proceeds of the Insurances;
- (f) in respect of the Relevant Contracts:
  - (i) the Relevant Contracts themselves and all rights and remedies in connection with the Relevant Contracts; and
  - (ii) all proceeds and claims arising from them;
- (g) any Security Accounts not held with Shawbrook and all monies at any time standing to the credit of those Security Accounts, together with all interest from time to time accrued or accruing on such monies, any investment made out of such monies or account and all rights to repayment of any of the foregoing;

- (h) any accounts which are not Security Accounts and which are not held with Shawbrook and all monies at any time standing to the credit of those accounts, together with all interest from time to time accrued or accruing on such monies, any investment made out of such monies or account and all rights to repayment of any of the foregoing; and
- (i) the Other Receivables (not assigned under clauses 4.3(a) to 4.3(h) (inclusive) above).

To the extent that any Assigned Asset described in clauses 4.3(a) to 4.3(i) inclusive or listed in part 4 of schedule 3 (*Additional Fixed Security*) is not assignable, the assignment which that clause purports to effect shall operate as an assignment of all present and future rights and claims of such Chargor to any proceeds of an Assigned Asset.

#### 4.4 Notice of assignment and/or charge - immediate notice

Immediately upon execution of this Deed (and immediately upon the obtaining of any Insurance or the execution of any Relevant Contract or the opening or designation of any Security Account (as relevant) after the date of this Deed) each Chargor shall:

- (a) in respect of each of its Insurances, deliver a duly completed notice of assignment to each other party to that Insurance in the form at Part 1 of schedule 4, and shall use its reasonable endeavours to procure that each such party executes and delivers to Shawbrook an acknowledgement, in the form at Part 2 of schedule 4;
- (b) in respect of each Relevant Contract, deliver a duly completed notice of assignment to each other party to that Relevant Contract in the form at Part 1 of schedule 5, and procure that each such party executes and delivers to Shawbrook an acknowledgement, in the form at Part 2 of schedule 5; and
- (c) in respect of each Security Account assigned by way of security under clause 4.3(g) above, deliver a duly completed notice to the relevant account bank in the form at Part 1 of schedule 6 and procure that the account bank executes and delivers to Shawbrook an acknowledgement in the form at Part 2 of schedule 6.

#### 4.5 Proceeds of the sale of certain Securities, P&M, Real Property and Intellectual Property

If the proceeds of sale referred to in clause 4.3 are required to be dealt with in a particular way pursuant to a Relevant Funding Agreement, each Chargor undertakes to deal with such proceeds of sale in accordance with the terms of such Relevant Funding Agreement or otherwise, in accordance with the terms of any consent or direction issued by Shawbrook to such Chargor in relation to any such Security Asset.

#### 4.6 Assigned Assets

Shawbrook is not obliged to take any steps necessary to preserve any Assigned Asset, to enforce any term of a Relevant Contract against any person or make any enquiries as to the nature or sufficiency of any payment received by it pursuant to this Deed.

#### 5. FLOATING CHARGE

Each Chargor charges and agrees to charge by way of first floating charge all of its present and future:

- (a) assets and undertaking (wherever located) which are not effectively charged by way of first fixed mortgage or charge or assigned pursuant to clause 4.1 (*Fixed charges general*), clause 4.2 (*Fixed charges additional*), clause 4.3 (*Security assignments*) or any other provision of this Deed; and
- (b) (whether or not effectively so charged or assigned) heritable property and all other property and assets in Scotland.

#### 6. CONVERSION OF FLOATING CHARGE

#### 6.1 Conversion by notice

Shawbrook may, by written notice to a Chargor, convert the floating charge created under this Deed into a fixed charge as regards all or any of the assets of such Chargor specified in the notice if:

- (a) an Enforcement Event has occurred and is continuing; or
- (b) Shawbrook (acting reasonably) considers any Security Assets (whether or not those specified in the notice) to be in danger of being seized or sold under any form of distress, attachment, execution or other legal process or to be otherwise in jeopardy.

#### 6.2 Small companies

No floating charge created under this Deed by a Chargor shall convert into a fixed charge solely by reason of a moratorium being obtained under the Insolvency Act 2000 (or anything done with a view to obtaining such a moratorium) in respect of such Chargor.

#### 6.3 Automatic conversion

A floating charge created under this Deed shall (in addition to the circumstances in which the same will occur under general law) automatically convert into a fixed charge:

- (a) in relation to any Security Asset which is subject to that floating charge if:
  - (i) the relevant Chargor creates (or attempts or purports to create) any Security Interest on or over the relevant Security Asset without the prior written consent of Shawbrook; or
  - (ii) any third party levies or attempts to levy any distress, execution, attachment or other legal process against any such Security Asset; and
- (b) over all Security Assets of a Chargor which are subject to a floating charge if an Administrator is appointed in respect of such Chargor or Shawbrook receives notice of intention to appoint such an Administrator.

#### 6.4 Partial conversion

The giving of a notice by Shawbrook pursuant to clause 6.1 (*Conversion by notice*) in relation to any class of assets of any Chargor shall not be construed as a waiver or abandonment of the rights of Shawbrook to serve similar notices in respect of any other class of assets or of any other right of Shawbrook.

#### 7. CONTINUING SECURITY

#### 7.1 Continuing security

This Security is continuing and will extend to the ultimate balance of the Secured Obligations regardless of any intermediate payment or discharge in whole or in part. This Deed shall remain in full force and effect as a continuing security for the duration of the Security Period.

#### 7.2 Additional and separate security

This Deed is in addition to, without prejudice to, and shall not merge with, any other right, remedy, guarantee or Security Interest which Shawbrook may at any time hold for any Secured Obligation.

#### 7.3 **Right to enforce**

This Deed may be enforced against any Chargor without Shawbrook first having recourse to any other right, remedy, guarantee or Security Interest held by or available to it.

#### 8. LIABILITY OF CHARGORS RELATING TO SECURITY ASSETS

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Deed or implied to the contrary, each Chargor remains liable to observe and perform all conditions and obligations assumed by it in relation to the Security Assets. Shawbrook is under no obligation to perform or fulfil any such condition or obligation or to make any payment in respect of any such condition or obligation.

#### 9. ACCOUNTS

No monies at any time standing to the credit of any account (of any type and however designated) of any Chargor with Shawbrook or in which any Chargor has an interest (and no rights and benefits relating thereto) shall be capable of being assigned to any third party.

#### 10. **REPRESENTATIONS**

#### 10.1 General

Each Chargor makes the representations and warranties set out in this clause 10 to Shawbrook.

#### **10.2** No Security Interests

Its Security Assets are, or when acquired will be, beneficially owned by it free from any Security Interest other than any Permitted Security.

#### 10.3 No avoidance

This Deed creates the Security Interests which it purports to create and is not liable to be avoided or otherwise set aside on the occurrence of any Insolvency Proceedings in relation to a Chargor or otherwise.

#### **10.4 Ownership of Security Assets**

Each Chargor is the sole legal and beneficial owner of all the Security Assets identified against its name in

schedule 2 (Details of Security Assets).

#### **10.5** No proceedings pending or threatened

Save as disclosed to Shawbrook in writing, no litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings or investigations of, or before, any court, arbitral body or agency which would result in any Chargor incurring a liability which would have a material adverse effect on the business, operations, property, condition (financial or otherwise) or prospects of that Chargor have, to the best of its knowledge and belief (having made due and careful enquiry), been started or threatened against it or any of its Subsidiaries.

#### 10.6 Securities

All Securities are fully paid.

#### **10.7** Real Property

10.8 In relation to the Real Property, unless otherwise agreed by Shawbrook in writing, part 1 of

#### 10.9

schedule 2 (*Details of Security Assets*) identifies all freehold and leasehold Real Property which is beneficially owned by the Chargors at the date of this Deed.

#### **10.10** Additional Representations

The representations and warranties set out in part 3 of schedule 3 (Additional Representations) to this Deed (if any) shall be read and construed as one with the representations in this clause 10.

#### **10.11** Time when representations made

- (a) All the representations and warranties in this clause 10 are made by each Chargor on the date of this Deed and are also deemed to be made by each Chargor on the first day of each calendar month during the Security Period.
- (b) Each representation or warranty deemed to be made after the date of this Deed shall be deemed to be made by reference to the facts and circumstances existing at the date the representation or warranty is deemed to be made.

#### 11. UNDERTAKINGS BY EACH CHARGOR

#### 11.1 Restrictions on dealing

No Chargor shall do or agree to do any of the following without the prior written consent of Shawbrook:

- (a) create or permit to subsist any Security Interest on any Security Assets other than Permitted Security; or
- (b) sell, transfer, lease, lend or otherwise dispose of (whether by a single transaction or a number of transactions and whether related or not) the whole or any part of its interest in any Security Asset except:
  - (i) for the sale at full market value of stock in trade in the usual course of trading as conducted by such Chargor at the date of this Deed; or
  - (ii) as permitted by a Relevant Funding Agreement.

#### **11.2** Security Assets generally

Each Chargor shall:

- (a) permit Shawbrook (or its designated representatives), on reasonable written notice following an Enforcement Event having occurred and being continuing:
  - (i) access during normal office hours to any documents and records relating to the Security Assets; and
  - (ii) to inspect, take extracts from, and make copies of, the same,

and to provide (at the expense of such Chargor), such clerical and other assistance which Shawbrook may reasonably require to do this;

- (b) notify Shawbrook of every notice, order, application, requirement or proposal given or made by any competent authority in relation to any Security Asset specified in schedule 2 (*Details of Security Assets*) or schedule 3 (*Facility Specific Provisions*), immediately upon receipt and within 14 days of receipt of the same (if required by Shawbrook) immediately provide it with a copy and either (A) comply with such notice, order, application, requirement or proposal or (B) make such objections to the same as Shawbrook may require or approve **PROVIDED ALWAYS** that notices in respect of limb (a) of the definition of Securities Rights shall only be dealt with in accordance with this clause 11.2**Error! Reference source not found.** following the exercise by Shawbrook of its rights in accordance with clause 11.7(b);
- (c) duly and punctually pay all rates, rents, Taxes and other outgoings owed by it in respect of the Security Assets; and
- (d) in addition to any provisions of any Relevant Funding Agreement or this Deed relating to specific Security Assets:
  - (i) comply in all material respects with all obligations in relation to the Security Assets under any present or future law, regulation, order or instrument or

under any bye-laws, regulations or requirements of any competent authority or other approvals, licences or consents;

- (ii) comply with all material covenants and obligations affecting the Security Assets (or their manner of use);
- (iii) not, except with the prior written consent of Shawbrook, enter into any onerous or restrictive obligation affecting any Security Asset;
- (iv) provide Shawbrook with all information which it may reasonably request in relation to the Security Assets; and
- (v) not do, cause or permit to be done anything which may in any way depreciate, jeopardise or otherwise prejudice the value or marketability of any Security Asset (or make any omission which has such an effect).

#### 11.3 Securities

- (a) Each Chargor shall, immediately upon a request by Shawbrook by way of security for the Secured Obligations:
  - (i) deposit with Shawbrook or as Shawbrook may direct, all certificates and other documents of title or evidence of ownership to all or any of the Securities and their Securities Rights; and
  - (ii) execute and deliver to Shawbrook pre-stamped instruments of transfer in respect of all or any of the Securities (executed in blank and left undated) and/or such other documents as Shawbrook shall require to enable it (or its nominees) to be registered as the owner of or otherwise to acquire a legal title to all or any of the Securities and their Securities Rights (or to pass legal title to any purchaser).
- (b) Each Chargor shall immediately upon a request by Shawbrook:
  - (i) give notice to any custodian of any agreement with such Chargor in respect of all or any of the Securities and all present and future Securities Rights accruing to the Securities, in a form Shawbrook may require; and
  - (ii) use its reasonable endeavours to ensure that the custodian acknowledges that notice in a form Shawbrook may require.
- (c) Without prejudice to the rest of this clause 11.3, Shawbrook may, at the expense of the relevant Chargor, take whatever action is required for the dematerialisation or rematerialisation of all or any of the Securities and all present and future Securities Rights accruing to the Securities.
- (d) Each Chargor shall promptly pay all calls or other payments which may become due in respect of all or any of the Securities and all present and future Securities Rights accruing to the Securities.

#### 11.4 Dealings with and realisation of Other Receivables and operation of Security Accounts

- (a) Each Chargor shall:
  - (i) without prejudice to clause 11.1 (*Restrictions on dealing*) (but in addition to the restrictions in that clause), not, without the prior written consent of Shawbrook, sell, assign, charge, factor or discount or in any other manner deal with any Other Receivable; and
  - (ii) collect all Other Receivables promptly in the ordinary course of trading in accordance with the terms of any Relevant Funding Agreement or otherwise in accordance with the instructions of Shawbrook from time to time and (if required by Shawbrook) pay all monies which it receives in respect of the Other Receivables into a Security Account and hold all monies so received on trust for Shawbrook.
- (b) Each Chargor shall deal with the Other Receivables (both collected and uncollected) and the Security Accounts in accordance with any directions given in writing from time to time by Shawbrook and, in default of and subject to such directions, in accordance with this Deed.
- (c) Each Chargor shall deliver to Shawbrook such information as to the amount and nature of its Other Receivables as Shawbrook may from time to time reasonably require.

#### **11.5 Operation of Security Accounts**

- (a) No Chargor shall whilst an Enforcement Event is continuing, withdraw, attempt or be entitled to withdraw (or direct any transfer of) all or any part of the monies in any Security Account without the prior written consent of Shawbrook and Shawbrook shall be entitled (in its absolute discretion) to refuse to permit any such withdrawal or transfer.
- (b) If the right of any Chargor to withdraw the proceeds of any Other Receivables standing to the credit of a Security Account results in the charge over that Security Account being characterised as a floating charge, that will not affect the nature of any other fixed security created by that Chargor under this Deed on all its outstanding Other Receivables.

#### **11.6** Relevant Contracts

- (a) No Chargor shall, except with the prior written consent of Shawbrook, amend or waive any term of any Relevant Contract, terminate any Relevant Contract or release any other party from its obligations under any Relevant Contract.
- (b) Each Chargor shall duly perform its obligations under each Relevant Contract, shall notify Shawbrook of any material default by it or any other party under any Relevant Contract and shall not take any action which will reduce or impede recoveries in respect of any Assigned Asset.
- (c) Each Chargor shall provide to Shawbrook, as soon as practicable upon receipt, copies of all notices and information received by it from any other party to any Relevant Contract.

#### 11.7 Rights in respect of Securities and Securities Rights

- (a) Until an Enforcement Event occurs, each Chargor shall be entitled to:
  - (i) receive and retain all dividends, distributions and other monies paid on or derived from its Securities; and
  - (ii) exercise all voting and other rights and powers attaching to its Securities, provided that it must not do so in a manner which (A) has the effect of changing the terms of such Securities (or any class of them) or of any Securities Rights or (B) which is prejudicial to the interests of Shawbrook.
- (b) At any time following the occurrence of an Enforcement Event which is continuing, Shawbrook may complete the instrument(s) of transfer for all or any Securities on behalf of any Chargor in favour of itself or such other person as it may select.
- (c) At any time when any Securities are registered in the name of Shawbrook or its nominee, Shawbrook shall be under no duty to:
  - (i) ensure that any dividends, distributions or other monies payable in respect of such Securities are duly and promptly paid or received by it or its nominee; or
  - (ii) verify that the correct amounts are paid or received; or
  - (iii) take any action in connection with the taking up of any (or any offer of any) Securities Rights in respect of or in substitution for any such Securities.

#### 11.8 Intellectual Property

Unless Shawbrook is of the opinion that the relevant Intellectual Property is of minor importance to a Chargor, each Chargor shall:

- (a) do all acts as are reasonably practicable to maintain, protect and safeguard (including, without limitation, registration with all relevant authorities) its Intellectual Property and not discontinue the use of any of its Intellectual Property; and
- (b) take all such reasonable steps, including the commencement of legal proceedings, as may be necessary to safeguard and maintain the validity, reputation, integrity, registration or subsistence of its Intellectual Property.

#### 11.9 Insurance

Each Chargor shall:

- (a) effect and maintain insurances at its own expense in respect of the Security Assets (save for manuals, logbooks or registration documents) with insurers previously approved by Shawbrook in writing and such insurances shall:
  - provide cover against (A) all risks which are normally insured against by other prudent companies owning or possessing similar assets and carrying on similar businesses and (B) all other risks which Shawbrook may from time to time specify;

- be in such amounts as would in the circumstances be prudent for such companies and shall include an entitlement to receive the full replacement value from time to time of any Security Assets destroyed or otherwise becoming a total loss; and
- (iii) where requested by Shawbrook, comply with any requirement that Shawbrook be included as a joint-insured, co-insured or composite insured party and/or as sole first loss payee;
- (b) at all times comply with any provisions relating to Insurance in any Relevant Funding Agreement.

#### 11.10 Additional undertakings

The undertakings set out in part 2 (*Additional Undertakings*) and part 5 (*Loans against Receivables*) of schedule 3 to this Deed (if any) shall be read and construed as one with the undertakings in this clause 11.

#### **12. POWER TO REMEDY**

#### 12.1 **Power to remedy**

If at any time a Chargor does not comply with any of its obligations under this Deed, Shawbrook (without prejudice to any other rights arising as a consequence of such non-compliance) shall be entitled (but not bound) to rectify that default. Each Chargor irrevocably authorises Shawbrook and its employees and agents by way of security to do all things (including entering the property of such Chargor) which are necessary or desirable to rectify that default.

#### 12.2 Mortgagee in possession

The exercise of the powers of Shawbrook under this clause 12 shall not render it liable as a mortgagee in possession.

#### 12.3 Monies expended

Each Chargor shall pay to Shawbrook on demand any monies which are expended by Shawbrook in exercising its powers under this clause 12, together with interest at the Default Interest Rate from the date on which those monies were expended by Shawbrook (both before and after judgment) and otherwise in accordance with clause 2.2 (*Default interest*).

#### 13. WHEN SECURITY BECOMES ENFORCEABLE

#### 13.1 When enforceable

This Security shall become immediately enforceable upon the occurrence of:

- (a) an event of default that is continuing or termination event (each howsoever defined or described) in any Relevant Funding Agreement; or
- (b) to the extent that no events of default or termination events (each howsoever defined or described) are contained in or exist in any Relevant Funding Agreement, any of the following events,

and shall remain so for so long as such event is continuing:

- (i) if any Obligor has failed to pay all or any of the Secured Obligations when due or (as the case may be) following a demand for payment by Shawbrook;
- (ii) an Obligor becomes Insolvent or subject to Insolvency Proceedings (other than if the Obligor takes any corporate action or other steps are taken or legal or other proceedings are started for the purposes of a bona fide, solvent scheme of reconstruction or amalgamation previously approved in writing by Shawbrook or a petition for winding-up which the Obligor has satisfied Shawbrook is vexatious, groundless or an abuse of process and the Obligor has taken steps within seven days of the petition to restrain the petitioner from advertising the petition, such petition has not been advertised and which in any event has been discharged within 14 days of the presentation of the petition).
- (iii) any other indebtedness of any Obligor is:
  - (A) not paid when due nor within any applicable grace period;
  - (B) is declared to be or otherwise becomes due and payable prior to its specified maturity as a result of an event of default (however described); or
  - (C) any commitment for indebtedness is cancelled or suspended as a result of an event of default (however described);
- (iv) if any Obligor breaches any of the provisions of this Deed or any Relevant Funding Agreement;
- (v) any Obligor rescinds or purports to rescind or repudiate or evidence an intention to rescind or repudiate this Deed or any Relevant Funding Agreement.

#### 13.2 Statutory powers

The power of sale and other powers conferred by section 101 of the Act (as amended or extended by this Deed) shall be immediately exercisable upon and at any time after the occurrence of any Enforcement Event and for so long as such Enforcement Event is continuing.

#### 13.3 Enforcement

After this Security has become enforceable, Shawbrook may in its absolute discretion enforce all or any part of the Security in such manner as it sees fit.

#### 14. ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY

#### 14.1 General

For the purposes of all powers implied by statute, the Secured Obligations are deemed to have become due and payable on the date of this Deed. Sections 93 and 103 of the Act shall not apply to the Security. The statutory powers of leasing conferred on Shawbrook are extended so as to authorise Shawbrook to lease, make agreements for leases, accept surrenders of leases

and grant options as Shawbrook may think fit and without the need to comply with section 99 or 100 of the Act.

#### 14.2 Powers of Shawbrook

- (a) At any time after the Security becomes enforceable, Shawbrook may without further notice (unless required by law):
  - (i) appoint any person or persons to be a Receiver of all or any part of the Security Assets and/or of the income of the Security Assets; and/or
  - (ii) appoint or apply for the appointment of any person who is appropriately qualified as Administrator of a Chargor; and/or
  - (iii) exercise all or any of the powers conferred on mortgagees by the Act (as amended or extended by this Deed) and/or all or any of the powers which are conferred by this Deed on a Receiver, in each case without first appointing a Receiver or notwithstanding the appointment of any Receiver; and/or
  - (iv) exercise (in the name of a Chargor and without any further consent or authority of such Chargor) any voting rights and any powers or rights which may be exercised by the person(s) in whose name the Charged Investments are registered, or who is the holder of any of them.
- (b) Shawbrook is not entitled to appoint a Receiver in respect of any Security Assets of a Chargor which are subject to a charge which (as created) was a floating charge solely by reason of a moratorium being obtained under the Insolvency Act 2000 (or anything done with a view to obtaining such a moratorium) in respect of such Chargor.

#### 14.3 Redemption of prior mortgages

- (a) At any time after the Security has become enforceable, Shawbrook may:
  - (i) redeem any prior Security Interest against any Security Asset; and/or
  - (ii) procure the transfer of that Security Interest to itself; and/or
  - (iii) settle and pass the accounts of the holder of any prior Security Interest and any accounts so settled and passed shall be conclusive and binding on each Chargor.
- (b) All principal, interest, costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to any such redemption and/or transfer shall be paid by the relevant Chargor to Shawbrook on demand.

#### 14.4 Privileges

- (a) Each Receiver and Shawbrook is entitled to all the rights, powers, privileges and immunities conferred by the Act on mortgagees and receivers when such receivers have been duly appointed under the Act, except that section 103 of the Act does not apply.
- (b) To the extent that the Security Assets constitute "*financial collateral*" and this Deed and the obligations of a Chargor under this Deed constitute a "*security financial*"

*collateral arrangement*" (in each case for the purpose of and as defined in the Financial Collateral Arrangements (No. 2) Regulations 2003 (SI 2003 No. 3226)) each Receiver and Shawbrook shall have the right after the Security has become enforceable to appropriate all or any part of that financial collateral in or towards the satisfaction of the Secured Obligations.

(c) For the purpose of clause 14.4(b), the value of the financial collateral appropriated shall be such amount as the Receiver or Shawbrook reasonably determines having taken into account advice obtained by it from an independent investment or accountancy firm of national standing selected by it.

#### 14.5 No liability

- (a) Neither Shawbrook nor any Receiver shall be liable (i) in respect of all or any part of the Security Assets or (ii) for any loss or damage which arises out of the exercise or the attempted or purported exercise of, or the failure to exercise any of, its or his respective powers (unless such loss or damage is caused by its or his gross negligence or wilful misconduct).
- (b) Without prejudice to the generality of clause 14.5(a), neither Shawbrook nor any Receiver shall be liable, by reason of entering into possession of a Security Asset, to account as mortgagee in possession or for any loss on realisation or for any default or omission for which a mortgagee in possession might be liable.

#### **14.6 Protection of third parties**

No person (including a purchaser) dealing with Shawbrook or any Receiver or its or his agents will be concerned to enquire:

- (a) whether the Secured Obligations have become payable; or
- (b) whether any power which Shawbrook or the Receiver is purporting to exercise has become exercisable; or
- (c) how any money paid to Shawbrook or to the Receiver is to be applied.

#### 15. **RECEIVER**

#### 15.1 Removal and replacement

Shawbrook may from time to time remove any Receiver appointed by it (subject, in the case of an administrative receivership, to section 45 of the Insolvency Act 1986) and, whenever it may deem appropriate, may appoint a new Receiver in the place of any Receiver whose appointment has terminated.

#### **15.2** Multiple Receivers

If at any time there is more than one Receiver of all or any part of the Security Assets and/or the income of the Security Assets, each Receiver shall have power to act individually (unless otherwise stated in the appointment document).

#### 15.3 Remuneration

Any Receiver shall be entitled to remuneration for his services at a rate to be fixed by agreement between him and Shawbrook (or, failing such agreement, to be fixed by Shawbrook).

#### **15.4** Payment by Receiver

Only monies actually paid by a Receiver to Shawbrook in relation to the Secured Obligations shall be capable of being applied by Shawbrook in discharge of the Secured Obligations.

#### 15.5 Agent of Chargor

Any Receiver shall be the agent of the relevant Chargor in respect of which it is appointed. Each Chargor shall (subject to the Companies Act 2006 and the Insolvency Act 1986) be solely responsible for his acts and defaults and for the payment of his remuneration. Shawbrook shall incur no liability (either to such Chargor or to any other person) by reason of the appointment of a Receiver or for any other reason.

#### 16. **POWERS OF RECEIVER**

#### **16.1** General powers

Any Receiver shall have:

- (a) all the powers which are conferred by the Act on mortgagees in possession and receivers appointed under the Act;
- (b) (whether or not he is an administrative receiver) all the powers which are listed in schedule 1 to the Insolvency Act 1986; and
- (c) all powers which are conferred by any other law conferring power on receivers.

#### 16.2 Additional powers

In addition to the powers referred to in clause 16.1 (*General powers*), a Receiver shall have the following powers:

- (a) to take possession of, collect and get in all or any part of the Security Assets and/or income in respect of which he was appointed;
- (b) to manage the Security Assets and the business of any Chargor as he thinks fit;
- (c) to redeem any security and to borrow or raise any money and secure the payment of any money in priority to the Secured Obligations for the purpose of the exercise of his powers and/or defraying any costs or liabilities incurred by him in such exercise;
- (d) to sell or concur in selling, leasing or otherwise disposing of all or any part of the Security Assets in respect of which he was appointed without the need to observe the restrictions imposed by section 103 of the Act. Fixtures may be severed and sold separately from the Real Property containing them, without the consent of any Chargor. The consideration for any such transaction may consist of cash, debentures or other obligations, shares, stock or other valuable consideration (and the amount of such consideration may be dependent upon profit or turnover or be determined by a

third party). Any such consideration may be payable in a lump sum or by instalments spread over such period as he thinks fit;

- (e) to alter, improve, develop, complete, construct, modify, refurbish or repair any building or land and to complete or undertake or concur in the completion or undertaking (with or without modification) of any project in which any Chargor was concerned or interested before his appointment (being a project for the alteration, improvement, development, completion, construction, modification, refurbishment or repair of any building or land);
- (f) to carry out any sale, lease or other disposal of all or any part of the Security Assets by conveying, transferring, assigning or leasing the same in the name of the relevant Chargor and, for that purpose, to enter into covenants and other contractual obligations in the name of, and so as to bind, such Chargor;
- (g) to take any such proceedings (in the name of the relevant Chargor(s) or otherwise) as he shall think fit in respect of the Security Assets and/or income in respect of which he was appointed (including proceedings for recovery of rent or other monies in arrears at the date of his appointment);
- (h) to enter into or make any such agreement, arrangement or compromise as he shall think fit;
- (i) to insure, and to renew any Insurances in respect of, the Security Assets as he shall think fit (or as Shawbrook shall direct);
- (j) to appoint and employ such managers, officers and workmen and engage such professional advisers as he shall think fit (including, without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing power, to employ his partners and firm);
- (k) to form one or more Subsidiaries of any Chargor, and to transfer to any such Subsidiary all or any part of the Security Assets;
- (1) to operate any rent review clause in respect of any Real Property in respect of which he was appointed (or any part thereof) and to apply for any new or extended lease; and
- (m) to:
  - give valid receipts for all monies and to do all such other things as may seem to him to be incidental or conducive to any other power vested in him or necessary or desirable for the realisation of any Security Asset;
  - (ii) exercise in relation to each Security Asset all such powers and rights as he would be capable of exercising if he were the absolute beneficial owner of the Security Assets; and
  - (iii) use the name of any Chargor for any of the above purposes.

#### **17.** APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

#### 17.1 Application

Subject to the terms of any Intercreditor Agreement, all monies received by Shawbrook or any Receiver after the Security has become enforceable shall be applied in the following order:

- (a) *first*, in satisfaction of, or provision for, all costs, charges and expenses incurred, and payments made by Shawbrook or any Receiver and of all remuneration due to the Receiver in connection with this Deed or the Security Assets;
- (b) *secondly*, in or towards satisfaction of the remaining Secured Obligations; and
- (c) *thirdly*, in payment of any surplus to any Chargor or other person entitled to it.

#### 17.2 Contingencies

If the Security is enforced at a time when no Secured Obligations are due (but at a time when amounts may become so due), Shawbrook or a Receiver may pay the proceeds of any recoveries effected by it into a blocked suspense account.

#### 18. SET-OFF

#### 18.1 Set-off

- (a) Shawbrook may (but shall not be obliged to) set off any obligation of a Chargor (contingent or otherwise under this Deed or which has been assigned to Shawbrook) against any obligation (whether or not matured) owed by Shawbrook to any Chargor or Obligor, regardless of the place of payment, booking branch or currency of either obligation.
- (b) If the obligations are in different currencies, Shawbrook may convert either obligation at a market rate of exchange in its usual course of business for the purpose of the setoff.
- (c) If either obligation is unliquidated or unascertained, Shawbrook may set off in an amount estimated by it in good faith to be the amount of that obligation.

#### 18.2 Time deposits

Without prejudice to clause 18.1(*Set-off*), if any time deposit matures on any account which any Chargor has with Shawbrook at a time when:

- (a) this Security has become enforceable; and
- (b) no Secured Obligation is due and payable,

such time deposit shall automatically be renewed for such further maturity as Shawbrook in its absolute discretion considers appropriate unless Shawbrook otherwise agrees in writing.

#### **19. DELEGATION**

Each of Shawbrook and any Receiver may delegate, by power of attorney (or in any other manner) to any person, any right, power or discretion exercisable by it under this Deed upon any terms (including power to sub-delegate) which it may think fit. Neither Shawbrook nor any Receiver shall be in any way liable or responsible to any Chargor for any loss or liability arising from any act, default, omission or misconduct on the part of any such delegate or sub-delegate.

#### 20. FURTHER ASSURANCES

#### 20.1 Further action

Each Chargor shall, at its own expense, promptly take whatever action Shawbrook or a Receiver may require for:

- (a) creating, perfecting or protecting the Security Interests intended to be created by this Deed; and
- (b) facilitating the realisation of any Security Asset or the exercise of any right, power or discretion exercisable by Shawbrook or any Receiver or any of its or his delegates or sub-delegates in respect of any Security Asset,

including the execution of any transfer, conveyance, assignment or assurance of any property whether to Shawbrook or to its nominees, the giving of any notice, order or direction and the making of any registration which in any such case Shawbrook may think expedient.

#### 20.2 Specific security

Without prejudice to the generality of clause 20.1 (*Further action*), each Chargor shall forthwith at the request of Shawbrook execute a legal mortgage, charge, assignment, assignation or other security over any Security Asset which is subject to or intended to be subject to any fixed security created by this Deed in favour of Shawbrook (including any arising or intended to arise pursuant to clause 6 (*Conversion of floating charge*)) in such form as Shawbrook may require.

#### 21. POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each Chargor, by way of security, irrevocably and severally appoints Shawbrook, each Receiver and any of its or his delegates or sub-delegates to be its attorney to take any action which such Chargor is obliged to take under this Deed, including under clause 20 (*Further assurances*). Each Chargor ratifies and confirms whatever any attorney does or purports to do pursuant to its appointment under this clause.

#### 22. PAYMENTS

#### 22.1 Payments

Subject to clause 22.2 (*Gross-up*), all payments to be made by a Chargor in respect of this Deed shall be made:

(a) in immediately available funds to the credit of such account as Shawbrook may designate; and

- (b) without (and free and clear of, and without any deduction for or on account of):
  - (i) any set-off or counterclaim; or
  - (ii) except to the extent compelled by law, any deduction or withholding for or on account of Tax.

#### 22.2 Gross-up

If a Chargor is compelled by law to make any deduction or withholding from any sum payable under this Deed to Shawbrook, the sum so payable by such Chargor shall be increased so as to result in the receipt by Shawbrook of a net amount equal to the full amount expressed to be payable under this Deed.

#### 23. STAMP DUTY

Each Chargor shall:

- (a) pay all present and future stamp, registration and similar Taxes or charges which may be payable, or determined to be payable, in connection with the execution, delivery, performance or enforcement of this Deed or any judgment given in connection therewith; and
- (b) indemnify Shawbrook and any Receiver on demand against any and all costs, losses or liabilities (including, without limitation, penalties) with respect to, or resulting from, its delay or omission to pay any such stamp, registration and similar Taxes or charges.

#### 24. COSTS AND EXPENSES

#### 24.1 Transaction and amendment expenses

The Chargors shall promptly on demand pay to Shawbrook the amount of all reasonable costs, charges and expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable legal fees, valuation, accountancy and consultancy fees (and any VAT or similar Tax thereon)) incurred by Shawbrook in connection with:

- (a) the negotiation, preparation, printing, execution, registration, perfection and completion of this Deed, the Security or any document referred to in this Deed; or
- (b) any actual or proposed amendment or extension of, or any waiver or consent under, this Deed.

#### 24.2 Enforcement and preservation costs

The Chargors shall promptly on demand pay to Shawbrook and any Receiver the amount of all costs, charges and expenses (including (without limitation) legal fees (and any VAT or similar Tax thereon)) incurred by any of them in connection with the enforcement, exercise or preservation (or the attempted enforcement, exercise or preservation) of any of their respective rights under this Deed or any document referred to in this Deed or the Security (including all remuneration of the Receiver).

EXECUTION VERSION

#### 25. CURRENCIES

#### 25.1 Conversion

All monies received or held by Shawbrook or any Receiver under this Deed may be converted from their existing currency into such other currency as Shawbrook or the Receiver considers necessary or desirable to cover the obligations and liabilities comprised in the Secured Obligations in that other currency at the Spot Rate of Exchange. Each Chargor shall indemnify Shawbrook against all costs, charges and expenses incurred in relation to such conversion. Neither Shawbrook nor any Receiver shall have any liability to any Chargor in respect of any loss resulting from any fluctuation in exchange rates after any such conversion.

#### 25.2 Currency indemnity

No payment to Shawbrook (whether under any judgment or court order or in the liquidation, administration or dissolution of a Chargor or otherwise) shall discharge the obligation or liability of such Chargor in respect of which it was made, unless and until Shawbrook shall have received payment in full in the currency in which the obligation or liability was incurred and, to the extent that the amount of any such payment shall on actual conversion into such currency fall short of such obligation or liability expressed in that currency, Shawbrook shall have a further separate cause of action against such Chargor and shall be entitled to enforce the Security to recover the amount of the shortfall.

#### **26. INDEMNITY**

Each Chargor shall indemnify Shawbrook, any Receiver and any attorney, agent or other person appointed by Shawbrook under this Deed and Shawbrook's officers and employees (each an "**Indemnified Party**") on demand against any cost, loss, liability or expense (however arising) incurred by any Indemnified Party as a result of or in connection with:

- (a) anything done or omitted in the exercise or purported exercise of the powers contained in this Deed;
- (b) the Security Assets or the use or occupation of them by any person (including any Environmental Claim); or
- (c) any breach by such Chargor of any of its obligations under this Deed.

#### 27. MISCELLANEOUS

#### 27.1 Appropriation and suspense account

- (a) Shawbrook may apply all payments received in respect of the Secured Obligations in reduction of any part of the Secured Obligations as it thinks fit. Any such appropriation shall override any appropriation by a Chargor.
- (b) All monies received, recovered or realised by Shawbrook under, or in connection with, this Deed may at the discretion of Shawbrook be credited to a separate interest bearing suspense account for so long as Shawbrook determines (with interest accruing thereon at such rate, if any, as Shawbrook may determine for the account of any Chargor) without Shawbrook having any obligation to apply such monies and interest or any part thereof in or towards the discharge of any of the Secured Obligations.

#### 27.2 New accounts

If Shawbrook receives, or is deemed to be affected by, notice, whether actual or constructive, of any subsequent Security Interest affecting any Security Asset and/or the proceeds of sale of any Security Asset, it may open a new account or accounts for any Chargor. If it does not open a new account, it shall nevertheless be treated as if it had done so at the time when it received or was deemed to have received such notice. As from that time all payments made to Shawbrook will be credited or be treated as having been credited to the new account and will not operate to reduce any amount of the Secured Obligations.

#### 27.3 Changes to the Parties

- (a) No Chargor may assign any of its rights under this Deed.
- (b) Shawbrook may assign or transfer all or any part of its rights under this Deed. Each Chargor shall, immediately upon being requested to do so by Shawbrook, enter into such documents as may be necessary or desirable to effect such assignment or transfer in accordance with the terms of any Relevant Funding Agreement (if applicable).

#### 27.4 Memorandum and articles

Each Chargor certifies that the Security does not contravene any of the provisions of its memorandum, articles of association or other constitutional documents.

#### 27.5 The Land Registry

(a) Each Chargor shall apply to the Chief Land Registrar (and consents to such an application being made by or on behalf of Shawbrook) for a restriction in the following terms to be entered on the Register of Title relating to any property registered at the Land Registry (or any unregistered land subject to first registration) and against which this Deed may be noted:

"No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the charge dated  $[\bullet]$  2022 in favour of Shawbrook Bank Limited referred to in the charges register or, if appropriate, signed on such proprietor's behalf by its secretary or conveyancer."

- (b) Each Chargor:
  - (i) authorises Shawbrook to make any application which Shawbrook deems appropriate for the designation of this Deed or any Relevant Funding Agreement as an exempt information document under rule 136 of the Land Registration Rules 2003;
  - (ii) shall use its best endeavours to assist with any such application made by or on behalf of Shawbrook; and
  - (iii) shall notify Shawbrook in writing as soon as it receives notice of any person's application under rule 137 of the Land Registration Rules 2003 for the disclosure of this Deed or any Relevant Funding Agreement following its designation as an exempt information document.

- (c) Each Chargor shall not make any application under rule 138 of the Land Registration Rules 2003 for the removal of the designation of any such document as an exempt information document.
- (d) Each Chargor shall promptly make all applications to and filings with the Land Registry which are necessary or desirable under the Land Registration Rules to protect the Security.
- (e) Each Chargor shall not, without the prior written consent of Shawbrook, permit any person to be or become registered under the Land Registration Act 2002 as the proprietor of a Security Asset who is not so registered under the Land Registration Act 2002 at the date of this Deed or, in the case of Real Property acquired after the date of this Deed, at the date of such acquisition.

#### 27.6 Amendments and waivers

Any provision of this Deed may be amended only if Shawbrook and each Chargor so agree in writing and any breach of this Deed may be waived before or after it occurs only if Shawbrook so agrees in writing. A waiver given or consent granted by Shawbrook under this Deed will be effective only if given in writing and then only in the instance and for the purpose for which it is given.

#### 27.7 Calculations and certificates

A certificate of Shawbrook specifying the amount of any Secured Obligation due from the Obligors (including details of any relevant calculation thereof) shall be prima facie evidence of such amount against the Chargors in the absence of manifest error.

#### 27.8 Waiver, rights and remedies

No failure to exercise, nor any delay in exercising, on the part of Shawbrook, any right or remedy under this Deed shall operate as a waiver, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right or remedy prevent any further or other exercise or the exercise of any other right or remedy. The rights and remedies provided are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law.

#### 27.9 Tacking

This Deed secures advances already made and further advances to be made.

#### **28. PROTECTIVE CLAUSES**

The obligations of each Chargor under, and the security intended to be created by, this Deed shall not be impaired by any forbearance, neglect, indulgence, extension or time, release, surrender or loss of securities, dealing, amendment or arrangement by Shawbrook which would otherwise have reduced, released or prejudiced this Security or any surety liability of any Chargor (whether or not known to it).

#### 29. THIRD PARTY CLAUSES

#### 29.1 Waiver of defences

The obligations of each Chargor under this Deed shall not be discharged, impaired or otherwise affected by an act, omission, matter or thing which, but for this clause 29.1, would

reduce, release or prejudice any of its obligations, or the Security Interests intended to be granted, under this Deed (without limitation and whether or not known to it or Shawbrook) including:

- (a) any time, waiver or consent granted to, or composition with, any Obligor or other person;
- (b) the release of any Obligor, any other surety or any other person under the terms of any composition or arrangement with any creditor of any Obligor or such other surety or other person;
- (c) the taking, variation, compromise, exchange, renewal or release of, or refusal or neglect to perfect, take up or enforce, any rights against, or Security Interest over assets of, any Obligor, any other surety or any other person or any non-presentation or non-observance of any formality or other requirement in respect of any instrument or any failure to realise the full value of any Security Interest;
- (d) any incapacity or lack of power, authority or legal personality of or dissolution or change in the members, name or status or constitution of any Chargor, any Obligor or any other person;
- (e) any amendment, novation, supplement, extension, restatement (however fundamental and whether or not more onerous) or replacement of a Relevant Funding Agreement or any other document or Security Interest including, without limitation, any change in the purpose of, any extension of or increase in any facility or the addition of any new facility under any Relevant Funding Agreement or other document or Security Interest;
- (f) any unenforceability, illegality or invalidity of any obligation of any person under any Relevant Funding Agreement or any other document or Security Interest; or
- (g) any insolvency, administration or similar proceedings.

# 29.2 Chargor intent

Without prejudice to the generality of clause 29.1 (*Waiver of defences*), each Chargor expressly confirms that it intends that this Security shall extend from time to time to any (however fundamental) variation, increase, extension or addition of or to any Relevant Funding Agreement and/or any facility or amount made available under any Relevant Funding Agreement or otherwise from time to time; and any fees, costs and/or expenses associated with any of the foregoing.

# 29.3 Immediate recourse

The Chargor waives any right it may have of first requiring Shawbrook (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) to proceed against or enforce any other rights or Security Interest or claim payment from any person before exercising any right under this Deed. This waiver applies irrespective of any law or any provision of a Relevant Funding Agreement to the contrary.

# 29.4 Application

Until the Secured Obligations have been irrevocably paid in full, Shawbrook (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) may refrain from applying or enforcing any other monies, Security Interest or rights held or received by Shawbrook (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) in respect of those amounts, or apply and enforce the same in such manner and order as it sees fit (whether against those amounts or otherwise) and the Chargor shall not be entitled to the benefit of the same.

# 29.5 Deferral of Chargor's rights

- (a) Until the end of the Security Period and unless Shawbrook otherwise directs, no Chargor shall exercise any rights which it may have by reason of performance by it of its obligations under this Deed:
  - (i) to be indemnified by an Obligor;
  - to claim any contribution from any guarantor of any Obligor's obligations under a Relevant Funding Agreement or any other person giving any Security Interest for the Secured Obligations;
  - (iii) to take the benefit (in whole or in part and whether by way of subrogation or otherwise) of any rights of Shawbrook under a Relevant Funding Agreement or of any other guarantee or Security Interest taken pursuant to, or in connection with, a Relevant Funding Agreement or otherwise by Shawbrook;
  - (iv) to bring legal or other proceedings for an order requiring any Obligor to make any payment, or perform any obligation, in respect of which s Chargor has given any Security under this Deed;
  - (v) to exercise any right of set-off against any Obligor; and/or
  - (vi) to claim or prove as a creditor of any Obligor in competition with Shawbrook.
- (b) If any Chargor receives any benefit, payment or distribution in relation to such rights it shall hold that benefit, payment or distribution to the extent necessary to enable all amounts which may be or become payable to Shawbrook by any Obligors under or in connection with a Relevant Funding Agreement or otherwise to be repaid in full on trust for Shawbrook and shall promptly pay or transfer the same to Shawbrook or as Shawbrook may direct for application in accordance with this Deed.

# 30. NOTICES

# **30.1** Communications in writing

Any communication to be made under or in connection with this Deed shall be made in writing and, unless otherwise stated, may be made by email or letter.

# 30.2 Addresses

The address and email (and the department or officer, if any, for whose attention the communication is to be made) of each Party for any communication or document to be made or delivered under or in connection with this Deed is:

- (a) in the case of a Chargor, that identified with its name on the execution page below or the Chargor's registered office;
- (b) in the case of Shawbrook:

# Shawbrook Bank, Sunderland, SR43 4AG

WCSlegalnotices@shawbrook.co.uk

or any substitute address, email or department or officer as one Party may notify to the other Party by not less than seven days' notice.

# 30.3 Delivery

- (a) Subject to clause 30.3(b) below, any communication or document made or delivered by one person to another under or in connection with this Deed will only be effective:
  - (i) if by way of email, when sent in legible form; or
  - (ii) if by way of letter, when it has been left at the relevant address or four days following the day on which it was despatched by first-class mail postage prepaid,

and, if a particular department or officer of any Party is specified on the execution page below, if addressed to that department or officer.

(b) Any communication or document to be made or delivered to Shawbrook will be effective only when actually received by Shawbrook and then only if it is expressly marked for the attention of the department or officer (or any substitute department or officer) as Shawbrook may specify from time to time for this purpose.

# **30.4** Internet communications

Each Chargor acknowledges that internet communications are not secure and may be intercepted by third parties, and, as such, Shawbrook does not accept any responsibility, legal or otherwise, for any interception of internet communications or interference by third parties.

# 31. PARTIAL INVALIDITY

All the provisions of this Deed are severable and distinct from one another and if at any time any provision is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect under any law of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity or enforceability of any of the remaining provisions nor the legality, validity or enforceability of such provision under the law of any other jurisdiction will in any way be affected or impaired.

# 32. RELEASE

Upon the expiry of the Security Period (but not otherwise) Shawbrook shall, at the request and cost of the Chargors, take whatever action is necessary to release or re-assign (without recourse or warranty) the Security Assets from the Security.

# **33. COUNTERPARTS**

This Deed may be executed in any number of counterparts, and this has the same effect as if the signatures (and seals, if any) on the counterparts were on a single copy of this Deed.

# 34. GOVERNING LAW

This Deed is governed by English law.

# 35. JURISDICTION OF ENGLISH COURTS

- (a) The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Deed (including a dispute regarding the existence, validity or termination of this Deed and non-contractual disputes or claims) (a "**Dispute**").
- (b) The Parties agree that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle Disputes and accordingly no Party will argue to the contrary.
- (c) This clause 35 is for the benefit of Shawbrook only. As a result, Shawbrook shall not be prevented from taking proceedings relating to a Dispute in any other courts with jurisdiction. To the extent allowed by law, Shawbrook may take concurrent proceedings in any number of jurisdictions.

**IN WITNESS** of which this Deed has been duly executed by each Chargor as a deed and duly executed by Shawbrook and has been delivered on the first date specified on page 1 of this Deed.

Name	Registered number	Registered office
Wellbeing Bidco Limited	13419100	Ty'N Llidiart Industrial Estate, Corwen, Wales, LL21 9RR
Healthfull Holdings Group Limited	09065760	Ty'N Llidiart Industrial Estate, Corwen, Wales, LL21 9RR
Healthfull Holdings Limited	09055631	Ty'N Llidiart Industrial Estate, Corwen, Wales, LL21 9RR
Wholebake (Topco) Limited	07554538	Ty'N Llidiart Industrial Estate, Corwen, Wales, LL21 9RR
Wholebake Limited	03292581	Ty'N Llidiart Industrial Estate, Corwen, Wales, LL21 9RR
9Brand Foods Limited	10253130	Ty'N Llidiart Industrial Estate, Corwen, Wales, LL21 9RR
Bounce Brands Limited	12029803	Ty'N Llidiart Industrial Estate, Corwen, Wales, LL21 9RR
Deeside Cereals I Ltd	01246878	Ty'N Llidiart Industrial Estate, Corwen, Wales, LL21 9RR

# **SCHEDULE 1**

# Part 1 - Chargors

# **SCHEDULE 2**

# **Details of Security Assets**

# Part 1 - Specified Real Property

Registered Land			
Name of Chargor	Address	Administrative Area	Title Number(s)
Wholebake Limited (company number 03292581)	The freehold land and buildings known as Tyn Llidiart Industrial Estate, Corwen (LL21 9RR)	Denbighshire	WA622816 and CYM261102
Deeside Cereals I Limited (company number 01246878)	The freehold land and buildings known as Unit 14, Fourth Avenue, Deeside Industrial Park, Deeside CH5 2NR		WA715771

_		
- [		
- 1		
- 1		
- 1		
- 1		

Unregistered land			
	Document describing the Real Property		
Address	Date	Document	Parties
None as at the date of this Deed.			

# Part 2 - Specified P&M

P&M			
Name of Chargor	Description	Serial Number	
Wholebake Limited (company number 03292581)	Please see list in the following pages		
Deeside Cereals I Limited (company number 01246878)	Please see list in the following pages		

Schedule of Assets

### Wholebake Limited, Ty'n Llidiart Industrial Estate, Corwen LL21 9RR

### FBL Area

### **Mixing Area**

VMI Petrini SPI 400A spiral bowl mixer, Serial no. 190092 (2021)

Two unnamed spiral bowl mixers, 250kg capc. No I.D. plate

Kolbe MW130-120 mixer mincer Serial no. 1280207 (2017)

Kolbe MW130-120 mixer mincer Serial no. 260996 (2010)

Kolbe MW130-120 mixer mincer I.D. inaccessible

#### Fruit Bar Line 3

Stainless steel slat belt flighted elevator, 3m

Kruger and Salecker MFW 0627 moulding machine Serial no. 1618 (2017)

Metra TF600 12 MT refrigerated cooling tunnel, 20m Serial no. 2985/17 (2017)

Overhead transfer belt unit, 1m

Argosy bar handling feeder unit, 4m Serial no. 015F (2017)

Argosy R200E V-Flow twin head flow wrapper Serial no. 015 (2017)

Videojet 1560 inkjet printer

Ishida DACS-W-0030SB/SS-1-NK checkweigher/metal detector with reject station Serial no. 561128 (2011)

Stainless steel packing conveyor, 2.5m

Econoseal Spartan cartoning machine with Robatech glue system Serial no. 10651 (2016)

Nemesis PL30 multipack checkweigher Serial no. 19091 (2019)

Little David LD7 box taper Serial no. 3160137DX (2016)

### Fruit Bar Line 2

Kruger and Salecker MFT 400 bar moulding machine Serial no. 1768 (2021)

Metra TF400 MT refrigerated cooling tunnel Serial no. 2987/17 (2017)

Argosy bar handling feeder unit

Argosy V-Flow twin head flow wrapper Serial no. 295-811 (2011)

lshida DACS-W-0030SB/SS-1-NK checkweigher/metal detector with reject station Serial no. 562404 (2012)

Stainless steel packing conveyor, 2.5m

Econoseal Spartan cartoning machine with Robatech glue system Serial no. 9982 (2012)

Nemesis PL30 multipack checkweigher Serial no. 21260 (2021)

Little David LD7 box taper Serial no. 1130097DX (2018)

### Fruit Bar Line 1

Stainless steel slat belt flighted elevator, 3m

Kruger and Salecker MFW 1627 moulding machine Serial no. 1192 (2010)

Metra TF600 12 MT refrigerated cooling tunnel, 20m Serial no. 2986/17 (2017)

Overhead transfer belt unit, 1m

Argosy bar handling feeder unit, 4m No I.D. plate

Argosy V-Flow twin head flow wrapper Serial no. 745-1119

Videojet 1560 inkjet printer

Ishida DACS-W-0030SB/SS-1-NK checkweigher/metal detector with reject station Serial no. 561487 (2011)

Stainless steel packing conveyor, 2.5m

Econoseal Spartan cartoning machine with Robatech glue system Serial no. 10078 (2013)

Nemesis PL30 multipack checkweigher Serial no. 19094 (2019)

Little David LD7 box taper Serial no. 2110057DX (2011)

Line 7

Mixer Pro-E300 spiral bowl mixer, 300kg capc. Serial no. 000015555 (2016)

Stainless steel slat belt flight elevator, 4m

AMS Wrapmatic 240 mobile film overwrapper Serial no. 002082 (2017)

AMS Tunnel Twin 50 mobile heat shrink tunnel Serial no. 1800055 (2018)

#### Wash Room

 $\mathsf{IWM}$  CW13EX stainless steel industrial cabinet washing machine Serial no. 1574 (2017)

#### **Craft Bakery Area**

Vacomat heated fat melt tank, 200 litre with agitator

Target stainless steel multi station induction hob Serial no. 16194-1400 (2018)

Unnamed spiral bowl mixer, 250kg capc (CB1)

Unnamed sprial bowl mixer, 250kg capc (CB2)

Sewtec 9 bar tray filling machine Serial no. 713800 (2015)

Foodtools CP-1F bar sheet press Serial no. 5631 (2017)

Foodtools CP-1F bar sheet press Serial no. 4891 (2015)

Two Acrivarn integrated double rotational rack gas ovens (2013)

Acrivarn integrated rotational single rack gas oven (2009)

Metra electric chocolate melting tank, 800 litre with agitator

Hellomoov bar sprinkling machine with integrated conveyor Serial no. 9188

# Sundries

#### Wash Room

IWM Crusader industrial washing machine (2012)

IWM 25SP industrial rack wash Serial no. 1115-R25SPA141205K (2012)

# **Cutting Room**

Foodtools CS10-TWWA automatic full sheet slicer Serial no. 4890 (2013)

Foodtools CS10-TWWA automatic full sheet slicer Serial no. 4111 (2011)

Foodtools CS10-TWWA automatic full sheet slicer Serial no. 4523 (2012)

### **Craft Bakery Packing Line 4**

Stainless steel bar infeed

Argosy V-Flow twin head flow wrapper Serial no. 5600809

Ishida DACS-G-SO15-13-SS-1-14 checkweigher/metal detector Serial no. 560011735 (2017)

Stainless steel packing conveyor

Basis Multipack cartoner with Videojet 8520 printer Serial no. 1863 (2021)

Nemesis PL30 multipack checkweigher Serial no. 19093 (2019)

Little David LD7 box taper Serial no. 2120037DX (2012)

### **Craft Bakery Packing Line 5**

Stainless steel bar infeed

Argosy V-Flow 585 twin head flow wrapper Serial no. 585-09-12

lshida DACS-G-SO15-13-SS-1-14 checkweigher/metal detector Serial no. 563162 (2013)

Stainless steel packing conveyor

Basis Double stack multipack cartoner with Videojet 8520 printer Serial no. 1847 (2022)

Nemesis PL30 multipack checkweigher Serial no. 19092 (2019)

Little David LD7 box taper Serial no. 2090197DX

# Craft Bakery Packing Line 6

Stainless steel bar infeed

Argosy V-Flow twin head flow wrapper No I.D. plate

Yamato ES106lmw-00c checkweigher/metal detector Serial no. TA1801961 (2019)

Stainless steel packing conveyor

Econoseal Spartan cartoning machine with Robatech glue system Serial no. 10135 (2013)

Nemesis PL30 multipack checkweigher No I.D plate

Little David LD7 box taper No I.D plate

### Packaging Prep Area

AL-Tech Alritma M self adhesive labeller Serial no. 2105050326261 (2021)

AL-Tech self adhesive labeller Serial no. 1808WH001 (2018)

#### **Chocolate Room**

Gami TS250 chocolate melt tank, 250kg capc. Serial no. 104603 (2021)

Gami DIVA25 Temperator Serial no. 103777 (2019)

Gami OSR275 one shot dosing unit Serial no. 103824 (2019)

Stainless steel tray vibration station, 500mm

Tecnochoc FVR096 chocolate mould cooling tower Serial no. 217 (2019)

#### Despatch/Warehouse Areas

Girotec mobile pallet truck mounted auto pallet wrapper (2012)

Approximately 30 bays pallet racking throughout

Bramidan B5W baling machine (2013)

Warehouse sundries

The machinery and equipment included within this inventory includes all change parts, spares, drives, attachments, feed and delivery hoppers, level controls, supports, connections, control panels, PLCs, screens, manuals and instructions whether mentioned specifically or not.

#### Wholebake Limited, 41a Abenbury Way, Wrexham LL13 9UZ

#### Services

Kaesar HPC SM15T rotary screw air compressor, 8 bar mwp Serial no. 1331 (2016)

Kaesar HPC SM16 rotary screw air compressor Serial no. 1384 (2019)

Parker Ofas HL075 medium flow oil free heatless compressed air dryer system Serial no. 700FAS07277 (2020)

DKS welded steel vertical air receiving tank Serial no. 636920 (2020)

BVC TI 60 mobile industrial vacuum cleaner (2021)

#### Washroom

IWM CW13EX stainless steel industrial cabinet washing machine Serial no. 1540 (2016)

Kolbe MWE 130 stainless steel mobile mincer Serial no. 1260711 (2007)

Sundries

# Bagging Room - Equipment yet to be installed

Kruger and Salecker MFT 0300 small ball confectionary moulding machine Serial no. 1574 (2016)

Stainless steel decline chute table

Stainless steel vibratory hopper, 50kg capc.

Stainless steel bucket elevator No I.D plate

Stainless steel vibratory 10 bucket multihead weigher with load cells

Stainless steel access gantry framework

Technosys Cyclone 200B vertical form/fill/seal machine with date coder/printer Serial no. 2200BEW19-1232 (2019)

Stainless steel incline flight conveyor

Fortress pass through metal detector with reject station (2018)

Loma CW3 pass through checkweigher Serial no. ALW45008-47267F (2008)

### Main Production Hall

Three Gami water heated chocolate melt tanks, 250kg capc. with stirrers

# **Mixing Section**

White Bird 130S stainless steel weigh scales

Excell QW weigh scales

Two IBC stands with heaters

Stainless steel ingredients table

VMI SPI400AB removable bowl spiral mixer, 200kg capc. Serial no. 179967 (2016)

Topos 1153 stainless steel drum mixer, 500kg capc. Serial no. 220/24 (2016)

Stainless steel benchtop hotplate

#### Forming Section

C-Trak inclined flight conveyor, 4m Serial no. 10183-1 (2011)

Kruger and Salecker KOM 6083 bar forming/moulding machine Serial no. 1051 (2007)

Vemag HP30E mobile vacuum filler Serial no. 1660685 (2016)

Vemag HP3 mobile vacuum filler Serial no. 1700349 (2020)

Vemag SK5380 mobile servo crimper Serial no. SK5380000022 (2011)

Mobility Engineering CO1 BCF-S stainless steel belt conveyor, 10m (2020)

Mobility Engineering curved mini conveyor, 500mm

Mobility Engineering pull nose conveyor

Vemag SCR360 shuttle conveyor (right) Serial no. 3600057 (2020)

Mobility Engineering C05 BC-F-S multi control transfer conveyor, 2.5m (2020)

Mobility Engineering CO6 WMC-S wire belt conveyor, 2.5m

Riley Automation NTS 442 vibratory scarf conveyor (sprinkler) Serial no. SR12307 (2019)

Gami T600 tempering/enrobing machine Serial no. 103855 (2019)

Mobility Engineering pass through belt conveyor

Gami TR600-16 cooling tunnel, 22m Serial no. 103857 (2020)

Gami small transfer conveyor

Mobility Engineering stainless steel framed sectional slat belt transfer conveyor, 35m

### **Packaging Section**

Mobility Engineering gapping conveyor, 1.5m

Ceia THS/MS21-Conveyor metal detector Serial no. 21600245029 (2016)

Stainless steel gapping conveyor

llapak Carrera 6000 horizontal modular flow wrapping machine with 2 Videojet 1560 printers Serial no. 0642200042 (2017)

Ishida DACS-G-S015-13-SS-1-H checkweigher Serial no. 560011262 (2016)

Three stainless steel mobile sprinkler conveyors, 4m

Stainless steel packing conveyor, 4m

Green Planet Spartan 7077 cartoning machine with Rotatech glue system Serial no. 7331 (2000)

Range of production sundries

### Warehouse

Approximately 38 bays 3 tier pallet racking

Auto pallet wrapper (2015)

# Engineering Workshop

Sundries

#### Label Store

Two Nato label printers

#### **Assets belonging to Third Parties**

Narrow Aisle forklift truck

Counter balance forklift truck

Karcher floor scrubber

Karcher jet washer

The machinery and equipment included within this inventory includes all change parts, spares, drives, attachments, feed and delivery hoppers, level controls, supports, connections, control panels, PLCs, screens, manuals and instructions whether mentioned specifically or not.

### Deeside Cereals | Limited, 4th avenue, Deeside industrial Park, Deeside CH5 2NR

#### **Process Area (Ingredients Intake)**

RSJ Frame, with two x 2 ton hoists to feed bulk bag intake Two Bulk Bag Intake Stations with KEK sieve, extraction and load cells Serial no's. 020934 K300 (1999) 71656 MO 6903 (1992)

Five REEVES ENGINEERING Welded Steel Day Bins, approx. 27 ton each with load cells and screw conveyor discharge (one installed new in 2018)

Seven Feed Bins, each with rotary valve discharge to main process feed (one installed new in 2018) Two KEMUTEC Stainless Steel Sifter AERZEN 10.06kW 12.5m<sup>3</sup>/ min Skid Mounted Blower Fan Serial no. 91569100m (Located in Compressor Room)

AERZEN GM15L Blower Fan Serial no. 4054119 (2018) (Located in Compressor Room)

REEVES ENGINEERING approx. 1 ton Dump Bin (for day bins)

All Supporting Steelwork, Pipe Work & Controls to Ingredients Intake Bins

#### Syrup Plant

BAKER PERKINS approx. 750kg Sugar Bin with DCE extractor welded steel Atex rated screw discharge (2019) to COX & PLANT vibratory feeder BAKER PERKINS stainless steel water & sugar mixer with three way discharge

Three Stainless Steel Holding Tanks with pumps and stirrers

All Controls & Services to Syrup Plant

Three High Pressure Stainless Steel Blow Down Vessels, 1.5m<sup>3</sup> (one 2018) Ref. no. 15165 (2000) (included with pressure cookers)

### Cooking Level - On Mezzanine

Stainless Steel Loading Platform from Warehouse to Cooking Level

Two REEVES 1 ton Rotating Pressure Cookers, each with PLC control Ref no's. 1A (late 90's) 1B (late 90's)

each with cyclone and rotary valve loading discharge to stainless steel slat conveyor liquid loading vessel free standing control all supporting steel work and controls

Two REEVES 1 ton Rotating Pressure Cookers, each with PLC control Ref. no. 2C (late 90's), 2B (late 90's)

each with cyclone and rotary valve loading discharge to stainless steel slat conveyor liquid loading vessel free standing control all supporting steel work and controls

REEVES 1 ton Rotating Pressure Cookers, each with PLC control Ref. no. 2A (2018)

each with cyclone and rotary valve loading discharge to stainless steel slat conveyor liquid loading vessel free standing control all supporting steel work and controls (Subject to Lease with Bibby Leasing Ltd, ag.no. 18-00763 and excluded)

Three REEVES 1 ton Rotating Pressure Cookers, each with PLC control Ref. no. 3A (2011), 3B (2011), 3C (2015)

each with cyclone and rotary valve loading discharge to stainless steel slat conveyor liquid loading vessel free standing control all supporting steel work and controls

Drop from Cookers to include:

Three REEVES Inline Granulators, with screw conveyors

Stainless Steel Cyclone, with WAESCHIE ZGB400 Rotary Valve Serial no. 61498/10 with HOLMES HR80 blower Serial no. 2005896 (included with shredding line - mill to toaster)

KONGSKILDE Multiair Blower Fan Serial no. 9161613127 (included with Process 1 Pellet Line)

#### Process Line 1 - 10,000 ton/annum, Believed to be installed late 90's

Flake Process Line comprising:

CC PROCESS approx. 17m Six Burner/ Section Dryer (2 + 4) Ref. no. CN31 approx. 5m cooling section approx. 8m inclined tempering section with granulator drop to stainless steel vibrating sieve conveyor discharge blower to cyclone bin

ACRISON twin screw discharge loss in weight feeder drop to 2m screw mixer, with steam injection vibratory sieve conveyor ducting and blowers to flaking mill all controls and associated services

Pellet Line comprising:

Stainless Steel Receiving Screw Conveyor with drop to ACRISON loss in weight feeder drop to weigh belt feeder

drop to rotary valve to cyclone blower REEVES twin screw feeder, with dump to mill ICS 9kW heat exchanger

CPM WPS 410mm pellet mill with three section control cabinet, hydraulic power pack and two way convertor all controls and services to plant

FLAKE (Post Mill) Line comprising:

Stainless Steel Cyclone, with rotary valve with drop to stainless steel REEVES vibratory sieve BAKER PERKINS 10m toaster Serial no. 438-1 (2008) with GENERAL KINEMATICS vibratory feeder Serial no. K3660 (2008) approx. 6m stainless steel inclined ambient cooler with stainless steel belt Serial no. 033/20 (2008)

Vibrating Stainless Steel Grading Table, discharge to flight belt conveyor 8m stainless steel inclined flight belt conveyor Serial no. 4983 REEVES stainless steel fine vibrating sieve ROSPEN loss in weight belt feeder RILEY automation vibrating feeder GOUGH 18 Econ stainless steel (plastic bucket) 8m bucket elevator to packaging Serial no. 08/4672 (2008) all controls and associated services

#### Process Line 2 (Bran Sticks)

Shredding Process Line, comprising: Stainless Steel Conveyor REEVES twin screw feeder drop CPM WPS 410 mill with three section control panel and PLC panel Serial no. LO4014 Ref. no. X1529 / X1516 hydraulic power pack two way dump belt conveyor off take conveyor, with strand cutting 6m stainless steel transfer belt conveyor BAKER PERKINS Thermoglide 2 8m toaster with ACME vibratory bed free standing SIEMENS PLC control Ref. no. X1528 REEVES 6m stainless steel cooler, with stainless steel belt first belt conveyor to stainless steel flight elevator GOUGH vibratory three way screen Serial no. 04.1654 (2004) stainless steel take off conveyor Serial no. 4387.2 ROSPEN weigh belt conveyor Ref. no. P2A 9m plastic bucket (steel frame) elevator to packaging all controls and associated services to the line

#### Process Line 3 (Malted Wheaties)

Malted Wheaties Process, comprising:

SAFELINE Metal Detector with REEVES stainless steel discharge transfer screw with drop to ROSPEN feeder, with drop Serial no. 9372/1 (2008)

stainless steel flight belt conveyor, 3m (2018) to cone mill with rotary valve ROSPEN weight fan to cyclone BAKER PERKINS forming line Serial no. 223/1 (2015) five forming sheeting rolls (all water chill) ALLEN BRADLEY PLC and touch screen stainless steel twin screen feeder final stage lamination roller slitting and cross cutting machine Serial no. 2241 (2015) with camera inspection (belt) ALLEN BRADLEY Panelview Plus 1250 PLC off take conveyor

stainless steel cyclone with ducting, vibratory tray toaster to BAKER PERKINS Thermoglide 2 toaster (10m) Serial no. 4381 (2015) with GENERAL KINEMATICS vibratory feeder BAKER PERKINS approx. 6m stainless steel cooler with stainless steel belt Serial no. 0332 vibratory discharge/ grading table GOUGH Econolift stainless steel bucket elevator (plastic bucket), 9m Serial no. 15.9139 (2016) all control and associated services

### Mill Room

BAKER PERKINS 600 x 800 Flaking Mill Serial no. 2131 (2008) with weight belt feeder and vibratory conveyor all controls and associated services

APV 24" x 30" Flaking Mill Serial no. CCF980009 with weigh belt feeder and vibratory conveyor all controls and associated services

CHRISTY TURNER 800 x 1000 Flaking Mill Serial no. X1535 with weight belt feeder and vibratory conveyor all controls and associated services

The Pellet Intake System includes: Stainless Steel Cyclone & Screw Conveyor to feed three mills HOLMES blower fan three blower fans pellet feed control cabinet, with PLC control ref. no. 03358 approx. 10m flake off take conveyor, with ducting to process all controls and associated services

Three Heavy Duty Cooling Fans Serial no's. 5785RHF RHF fan/67995 Halifax fan / 61275 Halifax fan (included with coolers on toaster lines)

Spray Coating Sugar Handling Plant (2020) comprising:

Reeves Engineering stainless steel day bin, 500kg capacity with Fike Flamquench II explosion filter, horizontal screw feed to vibratory tube conveyor

The Spray Coating Line comprising:

Approx. 750kg Stainless Steel Jacketed Syrup Tank with high shear mixer, stainless steel vibratory feeder REEVES stainless steel flavour drum, with removable barrel ROSPENS stainless steel additive feeder Spiral tube and shell heat exchanger with pressure vessel and Lobe pump approx.10m stainless steel belt transfer conveyor VESTA 750kg jacketed stainless steel holding tank Serial no. 250029-1 (1990) with Lobe pump, pipe work and heaters AEROGLIDE 12m three section stainless steel 160°C single pass oven approx. 3.5m stainless steel cooling section

stainless steel sieve transfer table to approx. 5m and 2m belt transfer conveyor (to secondary cooler) C & C PROCESS approx. 4m stainless steel secondary cooling conveyor with ducting and stainless steel vibratory transfer table GOUGH 18BOL stainless steel/ plastic bucket swan necks elevator to packaging Serial no. 4516 (1999) RHF dust collection fan and ducting (located in warehouse) (2008) Four sections of BW8 stainless steel control panel Ref. no. X1522 & X1531 all controls and associated services to line

#### **Compressor Room**

EMMECTHALES Blower Pack Serial no. 32073 (2005)

AERZEN GM15L Blower Pack Serial no.783738 (2001)

HOLMES HR11 Blower Pack Serial no. 423260191

AERZEN GM15 Blower Pack Serial no. 821336 (2003) All Controls and Services to Blower Packs PARKER Hydraulic Power Pack Serial no. 6009460 with two 55kW motors and control panel (not in use at present, due to run new line in future)

HPC Kaesar TF174 Refrigerant Air Dryer Serial no.1959-7351212 (2019)

Compressor Plant comprising:

ATLAS COPCO GA75VSD 75kW Packaged Air Compressor, 13 bar Serial no. AP1653888 (2008)

ECOAIR A100 Packaged Air Compressor (No ID Plate)

Vertical Welded Steel Air Receiver

All Controls and Associated Services to Compressor Plant

### **Research & Development**

Sundry Equipment including:

WOLVERINE 8" Flaking Roll Mill with two 20kW drives

PAVAILLER 300° Electric Tray Oven TORBEL 400 Fluid Bed Toaster Est. 2005

BAKER PERKINS 125kg Pilot Cooker Serial no. 214/021 with hydraulic power pack and retrofit PLC and condensate recovery

HELMET 25kg Electric Bowl Mixer Serial no. 1676.453

BLUE SEAL E27 Electric Tray Oven

#### Mezzanine Area (Bulk Storage)

The Bulk Storage & Distribution Equipment comprising:

approx. 12m x 1.2m x 3m Stainless Steel Conveyor Store (flake) Ref. no. 1 (Process 1) with GOUGH stainless steel swan neck bucket elevator (approx. 8m) GOUGH stainless steel swan neck bucket elevator (approx. 14m) KMG travelling vibratory feeder Serial no. K01202 (2009) KMG discharge vibratory feeder, approx. 3m Serial no. J08408 (2009) KMG transfer vibratory feeder, approx. 4m Serial no. J08409 (2009) stainless steel supporting steelwork all controls and associated services

Approx. 10m x 1.2m x 3m stainless steel conveyor store Ref. no. 2 (Process 3) mild steel bucket elevator, approx. 8m Serial no. 041654 (2004) GOUGH stainless steel continuous bucket elevator, approx. 20m KMG travelling vibratory feeder Serial no. K01201 (2009) KMG discharge feeder, approx. 3m Serial no. J08401 (2009) KMG vibratory transfer feeder, approx. 5m Serial no. J08402 (2009) stainless steel supporting steel work

all controls and associated services to line

Approx. 14m x 3m x 1.2m mild steel/ stainless steel contact conveyor store Ref. no. 3 (Process 3 & 2 & Bulk Bag) KGM travelling vibratory feeder Serial no. G06802

Stainless Steel Bulk Bag Intake Vibratory Feeder with EUROLIFT bulk bag lift (1 ton) GOUGH stainless steel swan neck bucket elevator (approx. 33m) Serial no. 09/5440 (2009) vibratory exit feeder vibratory transfer feeder all supporting steel work all controls and associated services

Approx. 4m x 2.5m x 1.2m conveyor store Ref. no. Line E with travelling vibratory feeder COX & PLANT bulk bag intake station, with 1000kg hoist GOUGH stainless steel swan neck bucket elevator (approx. 13m) Serial no. 095175 (2009) 2.5m vibratory transfer exit feeder KMG vibratory transfer feeder Serial no. J0844 all supporting steel work all controls and associated services

Secondary Distribution including:

COX & PLANT Bulk Bag Intake Station/ Vibratory Feeder Serial no. 3852/2, with EUROLIFT hoist

two KMG vibratory feeders (approx. 6m) two KMG vibratory feeders (approx. 3m) one KMG vibratory feeder (approx. 2m) one KMG vibratory feeder (approx. 4m) two KMG vibratory feeders (approx. 4m)
COX & PLANT bulk bag intake station/ vibratory feeder
Serial no. 3852/1, with DEMAG hoist
KMG vibratory feeder (approx. 3m) KMG vibratory feeder (approx. 3m) KMG vibratory feeder (approx. 2m)
KMG vibratory feeder (approx. 1m) KMG vibratory feeder (approx. 1.5m) two KMG vibratory feeder (approx. 2m)
two KMG vibratory feeder (approx. 1m) KMG vibratory feeder (approx. 4m) KMG vibratory feeder (approx. 2m)
approx. 2m) KMG vibratory feeder (approx. 2m)
approx. 20m stainless steel belt conveyor to coating approx. 3m two way belt conveyor (Bulk 3) stainless steel vibratory feeder with two deck sieve

KMG 1.5m feeder, ROSPENS weight belt feeder to coating conveyor approx. 3.5m stainless steel belt conveyor single deck vibratory sieve to 13m swan neck

The DEMAG Bulk Bag Handing including: All RSJ Steel Work in Area YALE 1 ton hoist STAHL 1 ton hoist three EUROLIFT hoists Serial no's. LM135 (other two unknown) all controls and services

#### Packaging Area

Bag in Box Line No. 1 comprising: Weighing Platform YAMATO ADW-516MD 16 head weigher Serial no. 930-457 (1993) YAMATO ADW-516MD 16 head weigher Serial no. WG050689 ROVEMA CMV 220/160 twin station vertical form, fill & seal machine Serial no. 14793-070000 (2004) with box in-feed hot melt box closing machine NORDSON glue machine MARKEM 9064 inline coder approx. 12m transfer conveyor ISHIDA DACS-W-030-SB/ SS-IN (CTS) combination SAFELINE metal detector/ check weigher Serial no. 55844 (2008) 15m box transfer conveyor Serial no. 5972-03 (2008)

SCHUBERT Five Robot Pick & Place to Case Machine Serial no's. 903476 (2004) 00031089 Pick/ Loading 00031118 Sealing Box Forming with NORDSON hot melt machine BELL off-take conveyor SOCO coding station with MARKEM 5400 code printer Serial no. 042522 online guide

90° roller conveyor

Food Ex 3m inclined belt conveyor roller conveyor to robotic palletising all controls and services to line

Bag in Box Line No. 2 comprising: Weighing Platform ISHIDA CCW-R2-216B D/30-PB 16 head weigher Serial no. 21896 (1994) ISHIDA CCW-R2-216B D/30-PB 16 head weigher Serial no. 22800 (1994) ROVEMA CMV 220/160 twin station vertical form, fill & seal machine Serial no. 14794 (2000) with box in-feed, hot melt box closing machine with NORDSON glue machine MARKEM 9064 in-line coder ISHIDA DACS-W030-SB-PB-1 combination SAFELINE metal detector/ check weigher Serial no. 500835 (1999) approx. 15m belt/ slat transfer conveyor SCHUBERT TLM-VERSCHLIESSE five robot pick & place to case machine Serial no. 903477/31178/31208/31208 (2004) belt turning conveyor SOCO coding station with MARKEM 5000 coder (four head) and online guider approx. 4m roller conveyor 90° roller conveyor to palletising all controls and services to line

Bag in Box Line 3 comprising: Weighing Platform YAMATO DDW-516MV 16 head weigher Serial no. WG150702

YAMATO CCN RZ 216B-2M/30RB weigher serial no. 21550 (1993) HAYSSEN SANDIACRE TG320-LD vertical form & fill machine Serial no. MCHSP2246U (upgraded 2008) with MARKEM smart data to coder HAYSSEN NOVUS 350 vertical form & fill machine Serial no. MCHSP03665A (2016) approx. 12m take off conveyor approx. 12m take off conveyor

DIENST HK-IV-SK-12 ZOII/R 12" pitch bag boxing machine Serial no. 1736 (2008), with twin lane bag levelling conveyor continuous bag conveyor & box closing with NORDSON hot melt gluer, MARKEM 9064 coder LOMA CW3-6000M pass through metal detector/ check weigher Serial no. ACB51858-38088D (2017) (Subject to Lease with Bibby and excluded) SOCO coding station with MARKEM 5000 four head coder and onliner guide system gravity roller conveyor all controls and associated services to line

Smurfitt Kappa Wraparound Case Packer Serial no.UKB658 (2019) (Subject to Lease with Shawbrook and Excluded)

EURO/ IMPIANTI 504 Pallet System comprising: Serial no. 24C E100 two roller in-feed conveyors, 2.5m pick & place robot to serve four pallet stations full light guards and surround guarding

four pallet stations (two EURO, two UK) two JUNGHEINRICH laser guided fork lift truck (Subject to Lease and Excluded) free standing computing terminal all controls and services

ROBOPAC 360° Pallet Wrap Turntable, with ramp Serial no. 30132296 (2014)

#### Bar Line 1

Cereal Platform comprising:

Supporting Framework with two STAHL 1000kg chain hoists two bulk bag stations for ingredient intake and two sieves stainless steel hopper on weigh scales two stainless steel addition hoppers on loadcells

two REEVES ENGINEERING stainless steel vibrating feeders two stainless steel receiving hoppers (200kg each) REEVES stainless steel vibratory feed tray all controls and associated services

#### Mezzanine Area comprising:

LINDOR L-00750-R-120 750 litre Stainless Steel Mixer (for base layer) Serial no. 000852 (2001) LINDOR L-00500-R-120 500 litre stainless steel mixer (for top layer) Serial no. 00900 (2001) two stainless steel holding hoppers, with butterfly discharge HALIFAX stainless steel 475kg holding tank (fructose) with water jacket and pumps Serial no. 001/1162-6 two HALIFAX stainless steel 475kg holding tank (sugar) with water jacket and associated pumps Serial no's. 00/1162-1 /2 (2001) HALIFAX stainless steel holding tank (glucose) with water jacket and pumps, stainless steel mixing/ weighing vessel with ingredient flavour weighing/ dispensing Lecithin weighing system CHOCOTECH 50.010.018 stainless steel condensed melt/ storage vessel Serial no. 0006241018 (2001) with NORTHERN-PUMP inline pump Serial no. 02/17170 REEVES ENGINEERING 300kg stainless steel sugar bin with DCE DALAMATIC filter unit and associated screw discharger DEXTROS stainless steel bin with 100kg vibratory feeders with filter unit, rotary airlock and associated pumps stainless steel ingredients bin (base layer ingredients), with butterfly valve stainless steel ingredients bin (top layer ingredients), with butterfly valve two platforms, stainless steel 200kg powder feed bin (hand ingredients) with agitation and KTRON controls

stainless steel cyclone receiver fitted air seal, discharge hopper fitted KTRON feeder discharge three HALIFAX stainless steel 300kg melting tanks with heating coils/ water jacket and associated lobe pumps two KTRON 25kg stainless steel feeder hoppers, with agitators (top layer dry hand add) Serial no's. KMV-KT-35/ 00402571224295 KMV-KT-35/ 00402571224291 all associated pumps CHOCOTECH stainless steel water heated jacketed mixing vessel (top layer) with GREAVES mixer Serial no. 37971 (2014) and weight indicator CHOCOTECH stainless steel auto-weigher/ pre-mixer (250kg) with steam heating and agitator scraper (base layer)

two CHOCOTECH stainless steel cookers for base layer & middle layer with steam heating and agitator scraper

CHOCOTECH stainless steel auto-weigher/ pre-mixer for top layer with water heating and GREAVES mixer CHOCOTECH 50.010.025 stainless steel holding tank (200kg) with jacket heating & load cells Machine no. 000624/025 (2001) with associated pumps

ENDRESS AND HAUSER mass flow meter Serial no. C30AB202000 CHOCOTECH 50.010.020 stainless steel nut paste feeder (200kg) Machine no. 624020 (2001), with Lobe pump ENDRESS AND HAUSER mass flow meter Serial no. 9B061802000Y

KTRON stainless steel loss-in-weight hopper (50kg), with KTRON controls Ajax stainless steel continuous mixer Serial no. T15856 (Subject to Lease with Shawbrook and Excluded) ENDRESS AND HAUSER syrup flow meter Serial no. C30A7F02000 KTRON stainless steel loss-in-weight hopper (50kg) SOLLICH SMC-1-250 stainless steel continuous mixer machine no. 5048003 SKERMAN 500kg stainless steel chocolate holding tank with water jacket, agitator and associated pumps SOLLICH stainless steel insulated 400kg glucose tank two CHOCOTECH 50.010 017/01 stainless steel holding tanks with agitator scrapers and load cells machine no's. 0000234/017/01 (2001) with BECKHOFF controls, 2.5mm filters and pumps (to continuous mixer) all controls and services to bar line preparation The 800bpp Bar Forming Line comprising: Conveyor SOLLICH WEB1000G Stainless Steel Heated Feed Hopper to sheet forming roll station (1120 x 650mm & 975 x 475mm) Machine no. 504805 (2001) SOLLICH stainless steel compression sheet roll station (450 x 950mm) SOLLICH forming roll (950 x 280mm) SOLLICH WET1000 stainless steel caramel applicator middle layer roll station (950 x 650mm) Machine no. 5048009 (2001)

SOLLICH top layer forming roll station (1120mm x 450mm & 950 x 200mm) chocolate chip sprinkler finishing roller shallow forming roll

SOLLICH Thermo Flow KK1050 approx. 30m cooling tunnel (air cooled top, water chilled bed) Machine no. 5048017 (2000)

SOLLICH DL4 1050L inline drizzle unit Machine no. 9709001 (2007)

stainless steel chocolate (artificial) melting tank (300 litres) with water jacket, agitator and load cells Serial no. C24757 with lobe pump Serial no.7393B Bridge Six IBC Discharge Station, with six diaphragm pumps & pipework SOLLICH 10 Circuit Water Heating & Cooling Unit TRICOOL VICEROY Chiller (Not in use)

SOLLICH Stainless Steel Inline Sheet Slitting Unit Stainless steel belt spreading table SOLLICH SGU300 reciprocating guillotine Serial no. 5048024 all controls and services to SOLLICH line

Bar Line No. 1 Packaging including: OPM approx. 8m Belt Transfer Conveyor Two OPM Reject Conveyors Approx. 8m x four tier stainless steel belt buffer storage with PLC control Serial no. 1436-6558 (2001) all controls and services to line

LOMA X51BD X-Ray Machine Serial no. 58636F (2017) (Subject to Lease with Bibby and excluded)

LOMA CW3 Check Weigher Serial no. ACW52434-58638F (2017) with weight & metal reject stations (Subject to Lease with Bibby and excluded)

Line 1 (TEVOPHARM/ OPM): approx. 7m transfer conveyor, with bar transfer ref. no. 5 90° bend conveyor with bar turning belts ref. no. A1 single lane conveyor ref. no. A2 three sections stainless steel smart buffer ref. no's. A4/A5/A6 TEVOPHARM in-feed conveyor ref. no. A7 KLOCKNER Pack 2000 horizontal bar flow wrapping machine Serial no. 46401331 (2000) with BOSCH control HITACHI RX2-S control code printer Serial no. R2814739611 OPM off take conveyor to box packing robot Serial no. 1443-6563 (2001) with OPM control OPM FSV-20 box erector Serial no. 1437-6559 (2001) with NORDEN VISTA hot melt station slat belt conveyor approx. 10m transfer conveyor to robot

exit transfer conveyor from robot approx. 27m box transfer conveyor stainless steel diverting conveyor approx. 10m box transfer conveyor OPM CC12DX three flap closing machine Serial no. M40-6561 with NORDSON hot glue machine HITACHI RX2-S Serial no. R2S14412610 approx. 12m transfer conveyor ref. no. BL059CS all controls and services to line Line 2 (TEVOPHARM/ OPM): Approx. 3m stainless steel transfer conveyor, with bar feeder 90° bend conveyor, with bar turning unit and bar manufacturing Ref. no's. B1, B2, B3 three section stainless steel smart buffer conveyor ref. no's. B4, B5, B6 TEVOPHARM in-feed conveyor ref. no. B7

three section stainless steel smart buffer conveyor ref. no's. B4, B5, B6 TEVOPHARM in-feed conveyor ref. no. B7 KLOCKNER Pack 2000 horizontal bar flow wrapping machine (refurbished) Serial no. 46401332 (2000) with BOSCH control and HITACHI RX2-S coder Serial no. R2814741611 off take conveyor to OPM box packing robot Serial no. 1439-6560 (2001) OPM FSV-30 box erector Serial no. 1438-6559 (2001) With NORDSON VISTA hot melt glue machine approx. 6m box transfer conveyor approx. 35m box transfer conveyor to robot approx. 5m transfer conveyor approx. 3m transfer conveyor OPM CC12.SX three flap closing machine Serial no. 1441-6561 (2001)

with NORDSON hot melt machine HITACHI RX2-S coding machine Serial no. RS2114842611 approx. 5m transfer conveyor ref. no. BL076CS all controls and services to line

Stainless Steel 2m Belt Merging Conveyor from Wrapping Line 1 & 2 ISHIDA DACS-W-003-SB-PB-1 combustion check weigher/ metal detector Serial no. 551037 (2001) approx. 12m transfer conveyor RACUPAK catamaran case erector and carton packer, with PLC controls Serial no. 0501228 (2000) with NORDSON hot melt unit SOCO code printing station Serial no. UK001-03 with MARKEM 5200 coder and onliner guide approx. 5m roller off take conveyor flexi free wheel conveyor all controls and services to complete bar packaging line

### Bar Line 2

Ingredients Intake including:

Stainless Steel Raw Material Intake Platform (two gate) stainless steel finisher food platform (one gate) CHOCOTECH stainless steel 750kg glucose tank, with water jacket Serial no. 000624/021

with transfer pump serial no. 63446-A51 three stainless steel diaphragm pumps HOSOKAWA BEPEX 200 litre jacketed mixing vessel Serial no. 61893-03 (2014) on load cells, with shear mixer SPX lobe pump Serial no. 1000002973260 (2014) HOSOKAWA BEPEX 385 litre stainless steel steam jacketed vacuum cooker Serial no. 61893-04 (2014) with scraper agitator and vacuum pump HOSOKAWA BEPEX 300 litre stainless steel holding jacket vessel Serial no. 61893-05 (2014) SPX 015U2 lobe pump Serial no. 100000297326 (2014) with two CCPI filters and flow meter ICS itemp C190E 9.4kW heat exchanger Serial no. P0012V6000001 (2015) TRICOOL C6 9kW heat exchanger Serial no. 50002211 (2007) ICS itemp Ci90E 9.4kW heat exchanger Serial no. 284533-03-01 (2015) ICS temp Ci90E 9.4kW heat exchanger Serial no. 510004397 (2015) HOSOKAWA BEPEX chocolate jacketed melting/ mixing tank Serial no. 54461-10 (2006) NPS lobe pump ref. no. 7393A with sieve, magnet and mass flow meter

Flake Intake Station with: EUROLIFT IT Bag Hoist ref. no. V28102 stainless steel vibratory feeder LINDOR L500 stainless steel tumble mixer Serial no.382 (2015) with load cells KMG vibratory feeder Serial no. F07704 stainless steel frame plastic bucket/ chain swan neck elevator, with magnet Serial no. 06/3133 (2006) ROSPEN volumetric feeder BEPEX CMR120E twin screw continuous mixer (heated shell and screw) Serial no. 641171A (2015) with chocolate intake & syrup injection KMG additive mixer/ feeder KMG weigh feed belt, with feeder three BEPEX 9kW heaters Serial no's. 87378, 87379 and 6189302

HOSOKAWA BEPEX FP200-400 Three Roll Sheeter Serial no. 61282-01 (2014) with full water heating and Panel View Plus 1000 control

Approx. 34m Bar Line with compression roller (heat/ chill), with auto oil unit compression roller (chrome) (heat/ chill) additive feeder, with conveyor belt SOLLICH E5 temperametor Serial no. 29583005 / 61282-06

dome forming station, with interchangeable parts mutli-nozzle bar decorates, with melting vessel and lobe pump WOLF 100kg per hour chocolate tempering machine approx. 20m cooling tunnel, with belt tension unit model no. HKK-8704/620 final cooling section Serial no. 61282-10 (2014) with water bed chill to full length HOSOKAWA BEPEX SG40 rotary slitting station Serial no. 61282-16 (2014) HOSOKAWA BEPEX split conveyor Serial no. 61282-17 (2014) HOSOKAWA BEPEX MS600 E1/TB ultrasonic guillotine Serial no. 61282-18 (2014) with PLC control HOSOKAWA 180° return conveyor Serial no.61282-20 (2014) HOSOKAWA BEPEX Inclined Feed Table Serial no. 61282-21 (2014) KREUTER UZM 870 chocolate enrober (360°) Serial no. 61282-22 (2014) with PLC controls approx. 20m water bed/ chiller cooling tunnel & belt tension unit two approx. 500kg water jacket agitated chocolate melting tanks chocolate recovery sieve, with RUSSELL water heater HOSOKAWA BEPEX TMK500 tempering machine Serial no. 61282.28 (2014) two chocolate transfer pumps, with filter magnet units ICS 9kW heat exchanger Serial no. P0012V00001 all controls and associated services to main production line

#### Bar Wrapping Line 1 including:

CROWN CONVEYORS Intake Conveyor, with two roll aligners and reject station MGE AUTOMATION 4m buffering off take belt conveyors (leg line 1) 105° transfer conveyor MGE automation horizontal flow wrapper Serial no. 14165-2 with Panel View Plus 1000 controls HITACHI RX2-S coder Serial no. R2S14849611 hold down belt on out feed, with cold seal and 90° transfer belt all controls and services to line

#### Bar Wrapping Line 2 including:

MGE AUTOMATION 7.5m buffering off take belt conveyors with 90° bend conveyor roller alignment station transfer conveyors, with reject station (leg line 2) 105° bend in-feed transfer conveyor MGE AUTOMATION horizontal flow wrapper and controls Serial no. 14165.3 (2015) with ALLEN BRADLEY PLC 1000 control HITACHI RX2-S SD160W coder Serial no. R2S14410610 (2016) hold down belt on out-feed, with cold seal and 90° transfer belt ALLEN BRADLEY Panel View Plus 700 free standing controls for leg line 1 & 2 Serial no. 14165-1 (2015) and conveyors Serial no's. 10013C1, 10013C2, 10013B5, 10013B6, 14901B4, 14901B4, 14901B3, 14901B2, 14901B1 SOLLICH temper meter ES

all controls and services to line

Leg Line 1 Flow Wrap Out-Feed, Serial no. 10013 W01 leg line 2 flow wrap out-feed, Serial no. 10013 W02 CROWN CONVEYORS approx. 5m manual packing station BRADMAN LAKE SL90 End load cartoner Serial no. RF5089-1-2018 (2011) (Subject to Lease with Bibby and excluded) ALLEN BRADLEY Panel View controls NORDEN Pro Blue Liberty hot melt gluer Serial no. 5A15A11044 90° CROWN transfer conveyor Serial no. 10068 CROWN belt conveyor Serial no.10013 MARKEM 9064 coder & head Serial no. 979891 (2010) CROWN modular belt conveyor, with slight incline Serial no. 10064A MGE control panel Serial no. 14165-5 LOMA stainless steel through feed metal detector with check weigher and reject station Serial no. 278690 (2015) CROWN CONVEYORS 90° modular belt conveyor Serial no. 10064-B

Incline belt conveyor Serial no. 10064-C

Circa 2m hand packing station Serial no. 10064-D CERMEX C644408 flap gluer machine no. 3P899 (2015) with NORDSON Pro Blue 7 hot melt glue machine Serial no. 5A15 A1088 (2015) driven discharge conveyor Serial no. 10064 SOCO/ MARKEM outer case tape/ code print machine Serial no. 5200 & 96051 take off conveyor Serial no. 10064 stainless steel gravity roller feed

Masz SM320 electric bowl mixer Serial no. 320118 (2018)

HILTON PROCESS SOLUTIONS 500 litre Jacketed & Agitated Tank Serial no. 17/061 (2017) with pump and cooler

GIS 5 ton Chain Hoist Serial no. T3762

SOCO T10 case taper Serial no. 662-2001 (2001)

### Offline Bar Packing Line (installed circa 2017)

KEYMAC Carton Machine from Bar Line 2 with NORDSON Blue Pro gluer (Not installed)

CROWN Radius Plastic Slat Conveyor Serial no. 10448 1

CROWN Feed Belt Conveyor Serial no. 10448 2

LOMA WO 58638F Reject Station (Subject to Lease with Bibby and excluded)

LOMA WO 58634F CW3 1500L Check Weigher (Subject to Lease with Bibby and excluded)

LOMA WO 58635F X-Ray Reject (Subject to Lease with Bibby and excluded)

CROWN Stainless Steel Cased Part Inclined Belt Conveyor & Packing Table Serial no. 1048 3 (2017) with bander

Stainless Steel Roller Feed Conveyor, with declined extension

SOCO T10 Case Taper Serial no. 17-394-T10 (2012)

LOMA IQ3+E metal detector, with belt Serial no. 434490

Stored Machinery (not installed) (Subject to Lease and excluded)

LOMA WO 58634 X-Ray Machine

#### Warehouse

DUSCOVENT Centralised Dust Extraction System comprising: 75kW Fan Serial no. 61452 air intake ducting twin filter extractor screw discharge all controls and associated services

PAYNE 2000kg Pallet Invertor Serial no. 1741 (2005)

Model 3400HD 5' Baler Compactor Serial no. 065321 (2006)

Racking comprising:

Approx. 77 Bays of Average Four Tier Heavy Duty Pallet Racking nine x eight deep x four tier drive in racking seven x five deep x four tier drive in racking four x five deep x four tier drive in racking eight x two deep x four tier drive in racking

The Stretch Wrapping Line comprising: Roller Intake Conveyor ROBOPAC HELIX MS30Ti 360° pallet wrapping system Serial no. 4106120413 (2007) free standing control panel, with PLC control off take station, with light guards all controls and associated services

The Pallet Holding & Distribution Conveyor comprising: HYMO 2000kg Elevating Platform Serial no. 187940-1 Csi two axis transfer conveyor Serial no. 187940-2 Csi reject station, with two axis transfer conveyor Serial no. 187940-4 approx. 60m transfer accumulation conveyor the air lock conveyors include: two roller conveyors (4m) two roller conveyors (7m) two roller conveyors (3m) all controls and associated services

Two Jungheinrich EKS210a electric order pickers Serial no. FN443249 / FN443248 (2012) (Currently in storage awaiting programming)

Bulk Bag Rice Intake Station (Not in use)

ENDRESS AND HAUSER chocolate flow meter Serial no.9B061702000 (Not in Use)

KTRON stainless steel loss-in-weighed hopper (10kg) (Not in Use)

### **Cereal Packing Mezzanine Area**

IWM CW13EXDT Stainless Steel Washer Serial no. 1453 (2015) PROCTOR 062 stainless steel sample tray dryer ref. no. K96021 with HONEYWELL controls stainless steel vibratory sieve (approx. 2,500 x 800mm)

NEWSOME Air Conditioning Unit Serial no. C2368 (2015) with TRANE CGAX 039SN 33kW Turn Fan Chiller Serial no. WC06938 (2014) ref. no. C2368 (2015) all controls and associated services

Bar Line 2 Hot Water Wash Down Plant including:

UK EXCHANGERS UKE-3 Plate Heat Exchanger Serial no.C22344 (2015) two GRUNDFOS pumps condensate recovery tank, with pump TEMPEST water heater all controls and associated services (included with Bar Line 2)

KKT 23kW Chiller Serial no. 9050129 (2014) (included with Bar Line 2) with TRANE BCG B039 XIIIII X I XIII XX IIEXX IIIX chiller Serial no. PR-4243-GO (2019) (Subject to Lease with Investec Asset Finance PLC)

NEWSOME Air Conditioning Air Handling Unit to Mezzanine (heating & cooling) Serial no. E23668 (2015)

### **Boiler House**

BABCOCK WANSEN Model 2000 RR20 2148kg per hour Gas Fired Steam Generator Serial no. 110645/QQ8025 all controls and associated services (Currently not in use)

BABCOCK WANSEN Model 2000 RR20 2148kg per hour Gas Fired Steam Generator Serial no. 52134/UU80158 all controls and associated services (Not in service)

Ingredient Water Plant comprising:

UK EXCHANGERS UKE-3 Heat Exchangers Serial no. C17125 (2013) with GRUNDFOS pumps M & S water treatment plant all controls and associated services

Process Wash Down Water Plant including:

ALFA LAVAL Heat Exchangers with two GRUNDFOS pumps all controls and associated services

CLAYTON EY100 Steam Generator Serial no.B6620 (2001) with SPIRAX welded steel receiver M & S water treatment plant all controls and associated services

### Low Voltage Switch Room

LT Eight Section Supply Panel Switch with two ABB power factor controllers Serial no. 301799-1 MASTERYS UPS system

All controls and associated services

### **High Voltage Switch Room**

HAWKEN SIDDELEY Five Panel Intake Switch (2mW) two 11kV transformers all controls and associated services

#### Engineering

Engineering and Sundry Assets including:

COLCHESTER TRIUMPH Sliding Surfacing & Screw Cutting Gap Bed Centre Lathe Serial no. 64/004/35394

BRIDGEPORT Vertical Milling Machine, with digital read out Serial no. 7198H

LARZEP EM03012 30 ton Hydraulic Press

SAFETY KLEEN Stainless Steel Component Wash Serial no. E10584 (2003)

LINVAR 50-12-13 38 Shelf Carousel Storage Serial no. 1262

POWELL FC1000 Hydraulic Mobile Hoist Serial no. 13790

#### Fabrication

Engineering and Sundry Assets including:

NEDERMAN Mobile Fume Extraction Serial no. 12622345 (2008)

LINCOLN V270T Tig Welder Serial no. P1140906152

TD CUTMASTER Plasma Cutter Serial no. W67620

MUREX Transtig DC200i Welder-

BRIERLEY TB100-3 100mm Linisher Serial no. 137508

LUX-MILL Pedestal Drill Serial no. 912005

SAW UK R10-BS250 Horizontal Band Saw Serial no. 101791 (2013)

#### **Engineering Stores**

Large Quantity of Change Parts and Spares for the Process Machinery (Advised original purchase cost in the region of  $\pm 1$  million)

#### Yard (Rear)

Sundry Equipment including:

Welded Steel Oil Store, with full spill protection

Two 40' ISO Shipping Containers, with racking Serial no's. 7409786 / 7354467

Two 30' ISO shipping containers, with racking Two EMPTEEZY stores

SIP Air Mate Receiver Mounted Air Compressor (2010) Two 5' Hydraulic Waste Compactor Balers

Water Chill Plant comprising: CARRIER Four Fan Water Seven Chill Exchanger (105kW) Serial no. 8492 (2011) with balance tank and all pumps, pipes and controls TRANE CEAX 023 SE SN Twin Fan Package Chiller Unit Serial no. Y906872 (2016)

#### Silo Area including:

Approx. 30 ton Stainless Steel electric trace heated and clad glucose tank Serial no. - (2005) with all transfer pumps, pipes and controls

Two 30 ton Welded Steel Wheat Silos (load cells) Ref No's. 7 / 6 with intake filters, screw conveyor (common) and blower pack (in silo 7)

Two 40 ton Rice Welded Steel Silos, each with sieve and load cells Ref No's. 1/2 with intake filters, screw conveyor (common) and blower pack (inside silo 1) All Controls and Services to Silo 1 & 2

40 ton Bran Welded Steel Silo Ref No.3 with intake filters, load cells and blower pack all controls and services

40 ton Bran Welded Steel Silo Ref No.4 with intake filters, load cells and blower pack all controls and services

40 ton Sugar Welded Steel Silo Ref No.5 with intake filters, load cells and blower pack all controls and services

DAF Effluent Treatment Plant including: Model 6 Dissolved Air Flotation System with 30,000 litre Balance Tank, 30,000 litre Sludge Holding Tank 2 x Double IBC bunds (Subject to Lease with Shawbrook and Excluded)

The machinery and equipment included within this inventory includes all change parts, spares, drives, attachments, feed and delivery hoppers, level controls, supports, connections, control panels, PLCs, screens, manuals and instructions whether mentioned specifically or not.

# Part 3 - Intellectual Property

	Intellectual Property
None as at the date of this Deed.	

# Part 4 - Insurances

Insurances						
Insurer	Insured risks	Policy number	Type of Insurance			
Aviva Insurance Limited	Property Damage Money and Assault, Business All Risks, Computer, Business Interruption, Employers' Liability, Public and Products Liability, Commercial Legal Protection, Commercial Crime, Management Liability, Inspection Service	100743505CCI	Commercial Combined			
Aspen Insurance UK Limited	Property Damage, Business Interruption	N0AGF9G22A0C	Property Damage; Business Interruption			

# Part 5 - Security Accounts

Security Accounts					
Account holder	Account number	Account bank	Account bank branch address and sort code		
Wellbeing Bidco Limited		Barclays Bank plc	Raymond Court, Princes Drive, Colwyn Bay, North Wales LL29 8HT Sort Code: 20-25-77		
9Brand Foods Limited		Barclays Bank plc	Raymond Court, Princes Drive, Colwyn Bay, North Wales LL29 8HT Sort Code: 20-25-77		
Bounce Brands Limited		Barclays Bank plc	Raymond Court, Princes Drive, Colwyn Bay, North Wales LL29 8HT Sort Code: 20-25-77		

Security Accounts				
Account holder	Account number	Account bank	Account bank branch address and sort code	
Healthfull Holdings Limited		Barclays Bank plc	Raymond Court, Princes Drive, Colwyn Bay, North Wales LL29 8HT Sort Code: 20-25-77	
Wholebake Limited	-	Barclays Bank plc	Raymond Court, Princes Drive, Colwyn Bay, North Wales LL29 8HT Sort Code: 20-25-77	
Wholebake (Topco) Limited		Barclays Bank plc	Raymond Court, Princes Drive, Colwyn Bay, North Wales LL29 8HT Sort Code: 20-25-77	
Wholebake Limited		Barclays Bank plc	Raymond Court, Princes Drive, Colwyn Bay, North Wales LL29 8HT Sort Code: 20-25-77	
Wellbeing Topco Limited		Barclays Bank plc	Raymond Court, Princes Drive, Colwyn Bay, North Wales LL29 8HT Sort Code: 20-25-77	
Wholebake Limited		Barclays Bank plc	Raymond Court, Princes Drive, Colwyn Bay, North Wales LL29 8HT Sort Code: 20-25-77	
9Brand Foods Limited	-	Barclays Bank plc	Raymond Court, Princes Drive, Colwyn Bay, North Wales LL29 8HT Sort Code: 20-25-77	
Bounce Brands Limited		Barclays Bank plc	Raymond Court, Princes Drive, Colwyn Bay, North Wales LL29 8HT Sort Code: 20-25-77	
9Brand Foods Limited		Barclays Bank plc	5th Floor, 1 Snowhill, Queensway, Birmingham B4 6GN Sort Code: 20-37-63	
Bounce Brands Limited		Barclays Bank plc	5th Floor, 1 Snowhill, Queensway, Birmingham B4 6GN Sort Code: 20-37-63	
Wholebake Limited		Barclays Bank plc	5th Floor, 1 Snowhill, Queensway, Birmingham B4 6GN Sort Code: 20-37-63	

# Part 6 - Relevant Contracts

**Relevant Contracts** 

Date of Relevant Contract	Parties	Details of Relevant Contract
Intentionally blank		

# SCHEDULE 3

# **Facility Specific Provisions**

# Part 1 - Additional Definitions

For the purpose of this Schedule, terms defined in, or construed for the purposes of, the Facility Agreement (as defined below) have the same meanings when used in this Deed (unless the same are otherwise defined in this Deed) and the following terms have the following meanings and shall be read and construed as one with the definitions set out in clause 1.1 (*Definitions*).

"Export Receivable" has the meaning given to such term in the Facility Agreement;

"Facility Agreement" means the asset based lending agreement dated on or around the date of this Deed and made between (1) Wellbeing Bidco Limited (as Obligor) and (2) Shawbrook, pursuant to which Shawbrook has agreed to make facilities available to the Obligor;

"Non-Vesting Receivables" means Non-Vesting Domestic Receivables and Non-Vesting Export Receivables and "Non-Vesting Receivable" means any one of them;

"**Non-Vesting Domestic Receivables**" means any Receivables (other than Export Receivables) purportedly assigned to Shawbrook pursuant to the Facility Agreement but which do not, for any reason, vest absolutely and effectively in Shawbrook;

"Non-Vesting Export Receivables" means any Export Receivables purportedly assigned to Shawbrook pursuant to the Facility Agreement but which do not, for any reason, vest absolutely and effectively in Shawbrook;

"Other Proceeds" means all and any monies paid to a Trust Account which are not the proceeds of any Receivables;

"Receivable" has the meaning given to such term in the Facility Agreement;

"Related Rights" has the meaning given to such term in the Facility Agreement; and

"Trust Account" has the meaning given to such term in the Facility Agreement.

# Part 2 - Additional Undertakings

# Specified P&M

Each Chargor undertakes that it shall at all times comply with all undertakings relating to P&M in the Facility Agreement as if those paragraphs were set out in this Deed.

# Specified Real Property

Each Chargor undertakes that it shall at all times comply with all undertakings relating to Real Property in the Facility Agreement as if those paragraphs were set out in this Deed.

# Dealings with and realisation of Non-Vesting Receivables and Other Proceeds

- (a) Each Chargor shall only deal with Non-Vesting Receivables and the proceeds thereof and the Related Rights thereto in accordance with the Facility Agreement.
- (b) Each Chargor agrees that the Other Proceeds shall be dealt with as if they were the proceeds of Receivables assigned or purportedly assigned to Shawbrook in accordance with the terms of the Facility Agreement.

# Part 3 - Additional Representations

# Specified P&M

Each Chargor represents that it is the owner, with full title guarantee, of the Specified P&M set opposite its name in part 2 of

schedule 2 (Details of Security Assets).

# Specified Real Property

Each Chargor represents that it is the owner, with full title guarantee, of the Specified Real Property set opposite its name in part 1 of

schedule 2 (Details of Security Assets).

# Part 4 - Additional Fixed Security

In addition to those assets set out in clause 4.1 of this Deed, each Obligor also charges and agrees to charge all of its present and future right, title and interest in and to the following assets which are at any time owned by it, or in which it from time to time has an interest:

- (a) by way of first fixed charge all Non-Vesting Domestic Receivables and their proceeds now or in the future owing to such Chargor;
- (b) by way of first fixed charge all Related Rights relating to any Non-Vesting Domestic Receivables;
- (c) by way of first fixed charge all Non-Vesting Export Receivables and their proceeds now or in the future owing to such Chargor;
- (d) by way of first fixed charge all Related Rights relating to any Non-Vesting Export Receivables; and
- (e) by way of first fixed charge all Other Proceeds.

# Part 5 - Loans against Receivables

- (a) Each Chargor shall:
  - (i) without prejudice to clause 11.1 (*Restrictions on dealing*) (but in addition to the restrictions in that clause), not, without the prior written consent of

Shawbrook, sell, assign, charge, factor or discount or in any other manner deal with any Receivable;

- (ii) collect all Receivables promptly in the ordinary course of trading as agent for Shawbrook; and
- (iii) immediately upon receipt pay all monies which it receives in respect of the Receivables into a Security Account; and
- (iv) pending such payment, hold all monies so received upon trust for Shawbrook.
- (b) Subject to clause 11.5 (*Operation of Security Accounts*), no Chargor shall withdraw, attempt or be entitled to withdraw (or direct any transfer of) all or any part of the monies in any Security Account without the prior written consent of Shawbrook and Shawbrook shall be entitled (in its absolute discretion) to refuse to permit any such withdrawal or transfer.

#### **SCHEDULE 4**

#### Part 1 - Form of Notice to Insurers

From: [relevant Chargor] ("Company")

To: [insurer]

Date:

Dear Sirs

We refer to the [describe policy and its number] (the "Policy").

We hereby give notice that, pursuant to a debenture dated [• ] ("**Debenture**"), we have assigned to Shawbrook Bank Limited ("**Lender**"), subject to a proviso for re-assignment on redemption, all our right, title, interest and benefit in and to the Policy.

We irrevocably authorise and instruct you from time to time:

- (a) to disclose to the Lender without any reference to or further authority from us (and without any enquiry by you as to the justification for each disclosure), such information relating to the Policy as the Lender may at any time and from time to time request;
- (b) following an Enforcement Event, to hold all sums from time to time due and payable by you to us under the Policy to the order of the Lender;
- (C) following an Enforcement Event, to pay or release all or any part of the sums from time to time due and payable by you to us under the Policy only in accordance with the written instructions given to you by the Lender from time to time;
- (d) to comply with any written notice or instructions in any way relating to, or purporting to relate to, the Policy, the sums payable to us from time to time under the Policy or the debts represented thereby which you receive at any time from the Lender without any reference to or further authority from us and without any enquiry by you as to the justification for or validity of such notice or instruction; and
- (e) to send copies of all notices and other information given or received under the Policy to the Lender.

We are not permitted to receive from you, other than through the Lender, any amount in respect of or on account of the sums payable to us from time to time under the Policy or to agree any amendment or supplement to, or waive any obligation under, the Policy without the prior written consent of the Lender.

This notice may only be revoked or amended with the prior written consent of the Lender.

Please confirm by completing the enclosed acknowledgement and returning it to the Lender (with a copy to us) that:

- (a) you accept the instructions and authorisations contained in this notice;
- (b) you have not, at the date the enclosed acknowledgement is returned to the Lender, received any notice that any third party has or will have any right or interest in, or has made, or will be making any claim or demand or taking any action in respect of, the rights of the Company under or in respect of the Policy and you will notify the Lender promptly if you should do so in future;
- (C) you will pay or release all or part of the amounts from time to time due and payable by you under the Policy in accordance with the written instructions given to you by the Lender from time to time;
- (d) you will not exercise any right to terminate, cancel, vary or waive the Policy or take any action to amend or supplement the Policy without first giving 30 days' written notice to the Lender; and
- (e) that the Lender's interest as mortgagee is noted on the Policy.

This notice and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law.

Yours faithfully

for and on behalf of [• ]

## Part 2 – Form of Acknowledgement from Insurers

From: [insurer]

To: [• ] (**"Lender"**)

Date:

Dear Sirs

We acknowledge receipt of a notice dated [• ] (the "Notice") and addressed to us by [•] ("Company") regarding the Policy (as defined in the Notice).

We confirm that:

- (f) we accept the instructions and authorisations contained in the Notice;
- (g) we have not, at the date of this acknowledgement, received any notice that any third party has or will have any right or interest in, or has made, or will be making any claim or demand or taking any action in respect of, the rights of the Company under or in respect of the Policy and we will notify the Lender promptly if you should do so in future;
- (h) we will pay or release all or part of the amounts from time to time due and payable by us under the Policy in accordance with the written instructions given to us by the Lender from time to time;
- (i) we will not exercise any right to terminate, cancel, vary or waive the Policy or take any action to amend or supplement the Policy without first giving 30 days' written notice to the Lender; and
- (j) the Lender's interest as mortgagee is noted on the Policy.

This acknowledgement and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law.

Yours faithfully

[insurer]

#### SCHEDULE 5

### Part 1 - Form of Notice to Relevant Contract Counterparty

From: [relevant Chargor]

To: [counterparty]

Date:

Dear Sirs

We refer to the [describe relevant Assigned Agreement] ("Agreement").

We hereby notify you that pursuant to a debenture dated [• ] ("**Debenture**") we have assigned to Shawbrook Bank Limited ("**Lender**") absolutely (subject to a proviso for reassignment on redemption) all our right, title, interest and benefit in and to the Agreement.

We further notify you that:

- (k) we may not agree to amend, modify or terminate the Agreement without the prior written consent of the Lender;
- (I) subject to paragraph (a) above you may continue to deal with us in relation to the Agreement until you receive written notice to the contrary from the Lender. Thereafter we will cease to have any right to deal with you in relation to the Agreement and therefore from that time you should deal only with the Lender;
- (m) you are authorised to disclose information in relation to the Agreement to the Lender on request;
- (n) you must pay all monies to which we are entitled under the Agreement direct to the Lender (and not to us) unless the Lender otherwise directs in writing; and
- (0) the provisions of this notice may only be revoked with the written consent of the Lender.

Please sign and return the enclosed copy of this notice to the Lender (with a copy to us) by way of confirmation that:

- (i) you agree to the terms set out in this notice and to act in accordance with its provisions; and
- (ii) you have not received notice that we have assigned our rights under the Agreement to a third party or created any other interest (whether by way of security or otherwise) in the Agreement in favour of a third party.

This notice and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law.

Yours faithfully

		•
for	and on behalf of	
•	]	

## Part 2 – Form of Acknowledgement from Counterparty to Relevant Contract

From: [counterparty]

To: [• ]

Copy to: [relevant Chargor]

Date:

We hereby acknowledge receipt of the notice dated [• ], a copy of which is attached to the acknowledgment ("**Notice**") and confirm the matters set out in paragraphs (i) and (ii) of the Notice.

for and on behalf of [counterparty]

### **SCHEDULE 6**

### Part 1 - Form of Notice to Third Party Bank

To: [name and address of third party bank]

Attention: [ ]

Date:

Dear Sirs

We hereby give you notice that by a debenture dated [• ] ("**Debenture**") (a copy of which is attached) we have charged to Shawbrook Bank Limited ("**Lender**") all our right, title and interest in and to all sums of money which are now or may from time to time in the future be held in the following accounts in our name with you together with all interest credited thereto and the debts represented by those sums:

[• ]

(together the "Accounts").

We hereby irrevocably instruct and authorise you:

- 1 to credit to each Account all interest from time to time earned on the sums of money held in that Account;
- 2 to disclose to the Lender, without any reference to or further authority from us and without any liability or inquiry by you as to the justification for such disclosure, such information relating to the Accounts and the sums in each Account as the Lender may, at any time and from time to time, request you to disclose to it;
- 3 following an Enforcement Event, to hold all sums from time to time standing to the credit of each Account in our name with you to the order of the Lender;
- 4 following an Enforcement Event, to pay or release all or any part of the sums from time to time standing to the credit of each Account in our name with you in accordance with the written instructions of the Lender at any time and from time to time; and
- 5 to comply with the terms of any written notice or instructions in any way relating to the Accounts or the sums standing to the credit of any Account from time to time which you may receive at any time from the Lender without any reference to or further authority from us and without any liability or inquiry by you as to the justification for or validity of such notice or instructions.

By counter-signing this notice, the Lender confirms that we may make withdrawals from the Accounts until such time as the Lender shall notify you in writing that their permission is withdrawn, whereupon we will not be permitted to withdraw any amounts from any Account without the prior written consent of the Lender.

These instructions cannot be revoked or varied without the prior written consent of the Lender.

This notice and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law.

Please confirm your acceptance of the above instructions by returning the attached acknowledgement to the Lender with a copy to ourselves.

Yours faithfully

By: ..... for and on behalf of [relevant Chargor]

[Counter-signed by:

for and on behalf of Shawbrook Bank Limited

## Part 2 – Form of Acknowledgement from Third Party Bank

To: [• ]

Date:

Dear Sirs

We confirm receipt of a notice dated [• ] ("Notice") from [relevant Chargor] ("Company") of a charge, upon the terms of a Debenture dated [• ], over all the Company's right, title and interest in and to all sums of money which are now or may from time to time in the future be held in the following accounts with us in the name of the Company together with interest relating thereto:

[• ] (together the "Accounts").

We confirm that:

- 1 we accept the instructions and authorisations contained in the Notice and undertake to comply with its terms;
- 2 we have not received notice of the interest of any third party in any Account or in the sums of money held in any Account or the debts represented by those sums and we will notify you promptly should we receive notice of any third party interest;
- 3 we have not claimed or exercised, nor will we claim or exercise, any Security or right of setoff or combination or counterclaim or other right in respect of any Account, the sums of money held in any Account or the debts represented by those sums;
- 4 until you notify us in writing that withdrawals are prohibited, the Company may make withdrawals from the Accounts; upon receipt of such notice we will not permit any amount to be withdrawn from any Account except against the signature of one of your authorised signatories; and
- 5 we will not seek to modify, vary or amend the terms upon which sums are deposited in the Accounts without your prior written consent.

This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law.

Yours faithfully

for and on behalf of [third party bank]

## **EXECUTION PAGE**

# SHAWBROOK BANK LIMITED

Executed as a deed, but not delivered until the ) first date specified on page 1, by ) SHAWBROOK BANK LIMITED acting by a ) duly authorised attorney under a power of )\_attorney dated  $\frac{75^{7H}}{25^{7H}}$  MAX 2022 in the presence of:



Witness Sig	nature	
Witness Nar	DE SOPHIE	BROWA
Address		
Occupation	HOUSELINES	<b>n</b>

#### THE CHARGORS

Executed as a deed, but not delivered until the first date specified on page 1, by WELLBEING BIDCO LIMITED acting by a director in the presence of:	- -
Witness Signature	
Witness Name	· · · ·
Address	
Occupation	

#### **EXECUTION PAGE**

#### SHAWBROOK BANK LIMITED

Executed as a deed, but not delivered until the first date specified on page 1, by SHAWBROOK BANK LIMITED acting by a duly authorised attorney under a power of attorney dated in the presence of:	)
Witness Signature	
Witness Name	
Address	
Occupation	
	$\frown$
THE CHARGORS Executed as a deed, but not delivered until the first date specified on page 1, by WELLBEING BIDCO LIMITED acting by a director in the	)
presence of: Witness Signature	) Director

BF ABL Debenture V1.3 0421

Address

Witness Name ALICIA HEBRON

Occupation ADMINISTRATOR

51

Executed as a deed, but not delivered until the first date specified on page 1, by HEALTHFULL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED acting by a director in the presence ) Director of:

	$\sim$
)	
)	
)	

Witness Signate	пе		
Witness Name	Nothan	Heldon	
Address			
Occupation	Merchande	er	

Executed as a deed, but not delivered until the ) first date specified on page 1, by ) HEALTHFULL HOLDINGS LIMITED )\_ acting by a director in the presence of:

	<u></u>	

) Director

Witness Signat	ure	
Witness Name	Notton Hoan	
Address	h s	
~		
Occupation	Mechados	

BF ABL | Debenture V1.3 0421

Executed as a deed, but not delivered until the ) first date specified on page 1, by ) WHOLEBAKE (TOPCO) LIMITED acting by ) a director in the presence of: )

)	
1	
)	- Server Street
Ń	
)	

) Director

Witness Signatu	re	
Witness Name	ALICIA	HEBRON
Address _		·
Occupation	ADMINI	STRATOR

Executed as a deed, but not delivered until the ) first date specified on page 1, by ) WHOLEBAKE LIMITED acting by a director ) in the presence of: )



) Director

Witness Signature	·	
Witness Name	ALICIA	HEBRON
Address		_
Occupation	ADMINIS	TRATOR

Executed as a deed, but not delivered until the ) first date specified on page 1, by **9BRAND** ) **FOODS LIMITED** acting by a director in the ) presence of: )

(	

) Director

Witness Signat	ure		
Witness Name	Abtor '	Heben	
Address _			
	í Ŋ		
Occupation	Mechande	ĸ/	

Executed as a deed, but not delivered until the ) first date specified on page 1, by **BOUNCE** ) **BRANDS LIMITED** acting by a director in the ) presence of: )



) Director

Witness Signature	<u> </u>	
Witness Name	Notle-12	<u>non</u>
Address_	a d	
ALLE (1977)		
Occupation	laborder	

BF ABL Debenture V1.3 0421

54

Executed as a deed, but not delivered until the ) first date specified on page 1, by **DEESIDE** ) **CEREALS I LTD** acting by a director in the ) presence of: )

	$\frown$	
)		
)		
)		

) Director

Witness Signature
Witness Name ALICIA HEBRON
Address
Occupation ADNINISTRATOR